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New Hampshire Department of

BUSINESS AND

ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

T/- *

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity to enter into a
contract with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (VC #177204), Manchester, New Hampshire in the amount
of $750,000 for the development of the All Youth Count program, effective upon Governor and Council
approval through June 30, 2026.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available In the following account for Fiscal Year 2023 and are anticipated to be available in
Fiscal Years 2024, 2025, and 2026 upon the continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust encumbrances between fiscal years within the price limitation through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Office of Workforce Opportunitv

03-22-22-220510-14530000-

102-500731-Contracts for Program Services

FY 2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026

$20,000 $230,000 $250,000 $250,000

EXPLANATION

This contract between the Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity
(BEA/OWO) and Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. for the development of the All Youth Count program to
provide foster care youth and exited foster care youth with technical assistance Is in response to the Request
for Proposal (RFP) #DBEA 2023-12, released on February 07, 2023.

BEA/OWO is the state grant recipient for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WlOA) Title I Federal
Funds awarded by the US Department of Labor - Employment and Training Administration. The above
RFP was issued on behalf of the State Workforce Innovation Board (SWIB), which is the oversight body
established in federal regulation to oversee the appropriate use of WlOA Federal Funds and members are
appointed by the Governor. The RFP was for the provision of developing an innovative program that
enhances the choices available to eligible youth and which encourage youth to reenter and complete
secondary education, enroll in postsecondary education and advanced training, progress through a career
pathway, and enter into unsubsldized employment that leads to economic self-sufficiency. Easter Seals
New Hampshire, Inc., will develop the All Youth Count program to provide foster care youth and exited
foster care youth with technical assistance in receiving supportive employment, vocational mentorship, and
individualized/person centered support to mitigate barriers to Independence and stability.

A selection committee comprised of BEA/OWO staff members (Schedule #2) reviewed and scored the
proposals (Schedule #1). The committee identified the proposal from the Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
to be the most in line with the scope and deliverables outlined and therefore ranked their submission one of
the highest. Scoring is included as Schedule #3.



Easter Seals New Hampshire opened Its doors in 1936 and since then has expanded to include services for
all ages and abilities. They offer programs that support children, adults, seniors, and veterans. With their
expertise, Easter Seals t^ew Hampshire will help New Hampshire's foster youth participants in
identifying their interests, strengths, goals, and barriers, and provide them with individualized support to
help meet basic needs and make progress towards goals. The program will also help fostered youth
in advancing their careers. Staff will also provide virtual career exploration support.

The Attorney General's office has reviewed and approved this document as to form, substance and
execution.

In the event that Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
program.

Respectfully submitted,

Taylor Caswell
Commissioner



Department of Business and Economic Affairs
Office of Workforce Opportunity
Governor's Discretionary RFP
Written Proposal Scoring Criteria

Schedule #1

Proposals were reviewed, evaluated, and scored by an evaluation committee. Evaluation of
proposals were based on the following criteria for each component. Each criterion was scored
according to the degree of responsiveness present in the proposal being evaluated.

1. Proposal Cover Sheet Appendix A Required

2. Table of Contents with Page Numbers Required

100 Point Total

3. Proposal Narrative
A. Project Description
B. Description of Services
C. Performance Management
D. Timeline

E. Demonstrated Ability / Past ■

Performance - include 3 client

references

F. Conflict of Interest

Max. Six (6) Pages
Max. Three (3) Pages
Max. Three (3) Pages
Max. Two (2) Pages

Max. Two (2) Pages
Max. One (1) Page

Required
Required

Required

Required
Required

70 Point Total

30 Points (of 70)
10 Points (of 70)
10 Points (of 70)
10 Points (of 70)
10 Points (of 70)

4. Contractor Data Sheet Appendix B Required

5. Proposal Budget
A. Budget Narrative Max. Four (4) Pages

Required
Required

30 Point Total

6. State Assurances and Certification Appendix C Required

7. WlOA Assurances and Certification Appendix 0 Required

8. Miscellaneous Max. Three (3) Pages Optional



Department of Business and Economic Affairs Schedule #2
Office of Workforce Opportunity
Governor's Discretionary RFP
Proposal Review Committee

The following employees from the Office of Workforce Opportunity (OWO) reviewed all proposals.

Scorers:

•  Mr. Joseph Doiron - Director of Workforce Development, Office of Workforce Opportunity
o Mr. Doiron has worked for the Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of

Workforce Opportunity for 3 V4 years. He has been the Director of Workforce
Development at OWO for almost three years. Previously he served as Deputy Director
for the Governor's Office of Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR) and as Deputy
Director of the Office of Strategic Initiatives. Mr. Doiron has a Master's degree in Public
Administration from Norwich University and a B.A. in Political Science from New England
College.

•  Mr. Jimmie Hinson - Workforce Development Administrator, Office of Workforce
Opportunity

o Mr. Hinson has worked for the Department of Business and Economic Affairs for 6
years. He is currently the Workforce Development Administrator for the Office of
Workforce Opportunity, a position he has held for over two years. Prior to his positions
with BEA, Mr. Hinson worked for the NH Department of Education - Vocational
Rehabilitation for approximately 12 years as a Supervisor V. Mr. Hinson is a 2015
graduate of Leadership NH, 2007 graduate of Leadership Greater Concord and has a
B.A. in Marketing from the American Military University (AMU).

•  Ms. Lisa Gerrard, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WlOA) Administrator, Office
of Workforce Opportunity

o Ms. Gerrard has worked for the Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of
Workforce Opportunity for almost three years as the WlOA Program Administrator. Prior
to her position with BEA, Ms. Gerrard worked for the NH Department of Health and
Human Services for approximately 17 years as a Supervisor V. Ms. Gerrard has a M.S.
in Industrial/Organizational Psychology from Southern New Hampshire University and a
B.A. in Liberal Arts from the University of Massachusetts - Lowell.



Department of Business and Economic Affairs
Office of Workforce Opportunity
Governor's Discretionary RFP
RFP Scoring Results

Schedule #3

Proposer Average
Score

Rank Amount Funded

(Yes/No)

Easter Seals 83.33 1
$750,000

Yes

Future Works 82 2
$241,076

Yes

Southern New Hampshire Services 80.33 3
$500,000

Yes

Second Start 66.33 4
$665,148

No

Mv Turn 59.33 5
$172,700

No

National Collaborative for Digital Equity 58 6
$584,265

No

Future Fit Al 54.33 7
$201,500

No

New Hampshire JAG 54 8
$232,433

No

Educational Data Systems Incorporated 53.66 9
$347,716

No

Fire Standards and Training and Emergency Medical Services 53 10
$471,000

No

Resultant 47.66 11
$298,971

No

Find Help-Aunt Bertha 46.33 12
$93,500

No

Mainstay AdmltHub 41.66 13
$963,807

No



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

NH Department of Business and Economic Affairs
1.2 State Agency Address

100 North Main Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

555 Auburn Street Manchester, NH 03103

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-623-8863

1.6 Account Unit and Class

03-22-22-220510-

14530000-102-500731

1.7 Completion Date
6/30/2026

1.8 Price Limitation

$750,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Joseph Doiron, Director, Office of Workforce
Opportunity

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-7275

1.11 Contractor Signature

\] . Date: 05/01/2023
\  .]L i

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Cathy Kuhn, Chief Operating Officer

1.1 ;^"State Age^^ Signature

\  Date: 5/4/2023

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Taylor Caswell, Commissioner Affairs

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Sub^nce and Execution) (if applicable)

By: On: 05/11/2023

1.17 App^o^fal by the Gov^or and Executiv^ouncil (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHJBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council

approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies

the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHJBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds

in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
affer giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days af)er the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity Interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State Is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Slate of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued

by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certiflcate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certiflcate{s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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NH Department of Business and Economic Affairs • Office of Workforce Opportunity (OWO)

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The Office of Management and Budget (0MB) guidelines governing the fiscal administration of federally
funded programs defines the role of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. under this Agreement as that of a
"Contractor" of federal funds (versus a subrecipient). Therefore, applicable 0MB guidelines governing the role
of a contractor shall be applied to Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. through this Agreement.

Business and Economic Affairs, a department within New Hampshire State government describes the legal
document used to implement this service Agreement a "contract" for services. Therefore, all State contract rules
and procedures shall be applied to Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. through this Agreement.

As a condition of this contract agreement, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (herein after referred to as "the
Contractor") covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor under this Agreement shall be
used only as payment to the Contractor for the development of the All Youth Count program to provide foster
care youth and exited foster care youth with technical assistance in receiving supportive employment,
vocational mentorship, and individualized/person centered support to mitigate barriers to
independence/stability and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants
and agrees to;

1. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Agreement to accept or make
a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any sub-contractor or contractor
of the Contractor or the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Services detailed in
Exhibit B of this Agreement. The State may terminate this Agreement and any sub-agreement if It is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor, or sub-contractor or contractor of the
Contractor.

2. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Agreement or in any
other document. Agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any
purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the effective date of the Agreement.

3. Confidentiality of Records: The Contractor agrees to maintain Workforce Innovation and Opportunity
Action (WlOA) participant confidentiality to the extent that they have direct contact with WlOA eligible
customers in the course of carrying out the responsibilities outlined in the scope of services in Exhibit B.
In addition, information regarding participants and their immediate families that may be obtained through
application forms, interviews, tests, reports from public agencies or counselors, or any other source in
accordance with the Personally Identifiable Information policy and procedure, Without the permission of
the applicant/participant such information shall be divulged only as necessary for purposes related to
the performance or evaluation of this Agreement, and to persons having responsibilities under the
Agreement:

(a) The Contractor is responsible for taking reasonable steps to ensure the physical security of such data
under its control.
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NH Department of Business and Economic Affairs - Office of Workforce Opportunity (OWO)

(b) The Contractor is responsible for ensuring each of its employees, vendors or contractors being
involved with personal data or other confidential information are informed in the laws and regulations
relating to confidentiality.

(c) Each employee funded through this Agreement shall be required to sign a confidentiality statement
provided by the Contractor and kept on file.

4. Funds from this contract or the products developed with funds from this contract with similar deliverables
shall not be used to supplant, supplement or otherwise offset costs for other similar federal contracts
held by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

5. Veterans' Priority Provisions: The contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of the "Jobs for
Veterans Act" (JVA), Public Law 107-288 (38 USC 4215), as implemented by the Final Rule published
on December 19, 2008 at 73 Fed. Reg. 78132. The JVA provides priority of service to veterans and
spouses of eligible veterans for the receipt of employment, training, and placement services. Priority of
service for veterans is a condition of receipt of US DOL funds.

6. Buy American Notice Requirement: To the greatest extent practicable, and the extent to which
purchases are allowable in this Agreement, the contractor agrees to purchase American made
equipment and products. (See WlOA Section 505-Buy American Requirements).

7. Salary and Bonus Limitations:

(a) No funds available under this Agreement may be used by a recipient or contractor of such funds to
pay the salary and bonuses of an individual, either as direct costs or indirect costs, at a rate in excess
of the annual rate of basic pay prescribed for level II of the Executive Schedule under 5 U.S.C. 5313,
which can be found at https:llwww.opm.gov/.

(b) In instances where funds awarded under this agreement pay only a portion of the salary or bonus,
the WlOA Title I funds may only be charged for the share of the employee's salary or bonus
attributable to the work performed on the WlOA Title i grant. That portion cannot exceed the
proportional Executive level il rate. The restriction applies to the sum of salaries and bonuses
charged as either direct costs or indirect costs under WlOA Title I funds.

(c) The limitation described in paragraph (a) of this section will not apply to contractors (as defined in 2
CFR 200.23) providing goods and services.

(d) When an individual is working for the same recipient or Contractor in multiple offices that are funded
by Title I of WlOA or the Wagner-Peyser Act, the recipient or Contractor must ensure that the sum
of the individual's salary and bonus does not exceed the prescribed limit in paragraph (a) of this
section.

8. intellectual Property Rights: The Federal Government reserves a paid-up, nonexclusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use for federal
purposes;

i) the copyright in all products developed under the grant, including a sub grant or contract under
the grant or sub grant, and;

ii) rights of copyright to which the grantee, sub grantee or a contractor purchases ownership under
an award (including, but not limited to, curricula, training models, technical assistance products.
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and any related materials) Such uses Include, but are not limited to, the right to modify and
distribute such products worldwide by any means, electronically or otherwise.

iii) Federal funds may not be used to pay any royalty or licensing fee associated with such
copyrighted material, although they may be used to pay costs for obtaining a copy, which is
limited to the developer/seller costs of copying and shipping. If revenues are generated through
selling products developed with Agreement funds, including intellectual property, these
revenues are program income. Program Income is added to the Agreement and must be
expended for allowable Agreement activities.

9. If applicable, the following language needs to be included on all products developed, in whole or in part,
with grant funds in accordance WlOA law;

"This workforce product was funded by a grant awarded by the U.S. Department of Labor's Employment
and Training Administration. This product was created by the grantee and does not necessarily reflect
the official position of the U. S. Department of Labor. The Department of Labor makes no guarantees,
warranties, or assurances of any kind, express or implied, with respect to such information, including
any information on linked sites and including, but not limited to, accuracy of the information or its
completeness, timeliness, usefulness, adequacy, continued availability, or ownership. The institution
that created it copyrights this product. Internal use by an organization and/or personal use by an
individual for non-commercial purposes is permissible. All other uses require the prior authorization of
the copyright owner.'

10. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement: If the Federal award meets the definition
of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR §401-2 (a) and the recipient or sub-recipient wishes to enter into
a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties,
assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding
agreement," the recipient or sub-recipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401,
"Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government
Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the
awarding agency.

11. Requirement to Provide Certain Information In Public Communications "Stevens Amendment"
(Public Law 116-94, Division A, Title V, Section 505): Pursuant to P.L. 116-94, Division A, Title V,
Section 505, when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations and other
documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with Federal money, all non-
Federal entities receiving Federal funds shall clearly state:

i. The percentage of the total costs of the program or project which will be financed with
Federal money:

ii. The dollar amount of Federal funds for the project or program; and
iii. The percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program that will be

financed by non-governmental sources.

The requirements of this part are separate from those in the 2 CFR part 200 and, when applicable, both
must be complied with.

12. Certification Regarding Debarment and Suspension: (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) - A
contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide
exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the 0MB guidelines at 2
CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR
part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties
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debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under
statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.

(a) The Contractor shall certify by signature to this agreement that to the best of their knowledge, neither
the Contractor nor any of its principals:

i. are presently or have been debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by a Federal Agency or State
Agency:

ii. have within a five-year period preceding this agreement been convicted of, or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud, a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) •
transaction or Agreement under a public transaction, violation of antitrust statutes;
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

ill. are presently indicted for or criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal,
state, or local) with the commission of any of the offenses enumerated in (b) of this
certification; and

iv. have not within a three-year period preceding this agreement had one or more public
transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause.

13. Compliance with the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671 q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control
Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended: Contracts and sub-grants of amounts in excess of $150,000
must contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable
standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to
the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

14. Compliance with Procurement of recovered materials: The Contractor shall certify by signature to
this agreement that they shall comply with Solid Waste Disposal Act to the extent that such provisions
may apply to this agreement. See §200.322 Procurement of recovered materials. A non-Federal entity
that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply with
section. 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines
of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage
of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where
the purchase price of the Item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the
preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that
maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for
procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines. [78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, as
amended at 79 FR 75888, Dec. 19, 2014).

15. Breach of Contract: Contracts and sub-awards for more than the Simplified Acquisition Threshold
currently set at $250,000, must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies In instances
where contractors/contractors violate or breach contract terms. The Contractor agrees to comply with
the terms and conditions as set forth in the State Contract P-37 document #8, which provides for such
sanctions and penalties as appropriate.

16. All contracts in excess of $10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-
Federal entity. In addition to the Event of Default/Remedies as outlined in number eight (8) of the NH P-
37 Contract Document; BEA/OWO by thirty (30) day written notice, may terminate this agreement, in
whole or in part, when it is in the best interests of BEA/OWO. For supplies, the Contractor shall be
compensated in accordance with its auditable costs to point or notification of termination. For services.
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BEA/OWO shall be liable only for payment in accordance with the payment provisions of the agreement
for the actual services rendered to the effective date of the termination.

17. Equal Employment Opportunity. As a condition to the award of financial assistance from the
Department of Labor under Title 1 of WlOA, the Contractor assures that it has the ability to comply with
the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions of the following laws and will remain in
compliance for the duration of the award of federal financial assistance;

(a) Section 188 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WlOA), which prohibits discrimination
against all individuals in the United States on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including
pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, and gender identity),
national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, or political affiliation or belief, or
against beneficiaries on the basis of either citizenship status or participation In any WlOA Title I-
financially assisted program or activity:

(b) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the bases of
race, color arid national origin;

(c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits discrimination against
qualified individuals with disabilities;

(d) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age;

(e) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of sex in educational programs.

(0 Compliance with 29 CFR part 38 and all other regulations implementing the laws listed above.

(g) The Contractor shall agree by signature to this agreement to comply with the requirement to include
equal opportunity clause outlined below. Except as othenvise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all
contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3
must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with
Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity" (30 FR 12319. 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-
1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246
Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, "Office
of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.

18. During the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor agrees as follows:

(a) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The Contractor will
take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or
national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading,
demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or
other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices
to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
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(b) The Contractor will, In all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the
Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard
to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

(c) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or
disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This
provision shall not apply to instances In which an employee who has access to the compensation
Information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions
discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not
otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is In response to a formal
complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an
investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish
Information.

(d) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which It has a collective
bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding a notice to be provided by the agency
contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the Contractors
commitments under section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

(e) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and
of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(f) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of
September 24,1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant
thereto, and will permit access to their books, records, and accounts by the awarding agency and
the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules,
regulations, and orders.

(g) In the event of the Contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this Agreement
or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this Agreement may be canceled, terminated or
suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government
contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive
Order 11246 of September 24,1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as
otherwise provided by law.

(h) The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every sub award or
purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor Issued
pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions
will be binding upon each sub awardee or vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect
to any sub-award or purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance; provided, however, that in the
event the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a sub awardee or
vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such
litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

19. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148): The Contractor shall certify by signature to
this agreement that they are familiar with the Davis-Bacon Act and shall comply with the provisions of
this act to the extent it is or becomes applicable to this agreement. When required by Federal program
legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must
include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as
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supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions
Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with
the statute, contractors/subrecipients must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a
rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of
Labor. In addition, contractors/subrecipients must be required to pay wages not less than once a week.
The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the
Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or sub award must be
conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all
suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. The contracts or sub awards must
also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on
Public Building or Public Work Financed In Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States").
The Act provides that each contractor or sub-recipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means,
any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected
or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

20. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708): The Contractor shall certify
by signature to this agreement that they are familiar with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards
Act and shall comply with the provisions of this act to the extent it is or becomes applicable to this
agreement. Where applicable, all contracts and sub awards awarded by the,non-Federal entity in excess
of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for
compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29
CFR Parts). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor/subrecipient must be required to compute
the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in
excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of
not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the
work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that
no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are
unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or
materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or
transmission of intelligence.

21. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352): Contractors/Subrecipients that apply or bid for an
award exceeding $100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it
will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any
Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any
lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such
disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award.

22. Prohibition on certain teiecommunications and video surveiliance services or equipment: The
Contractor agrees to comply with Public Law 115-232. section 889 regarding the prohibition on certain
telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment and agrees to not use any covered
equipment or services produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any
subsidiary or affiliate of such entities). (See 2 CFR § 200.216).
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Agreement Period; Effective upon Governor & Council Approval - 6/30/2026

Contractor: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

This cost reimbursement Agreement for services between Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Department
of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity (OWO) will be for a term effective upon
Governor & Council Approval and terminating on 6/30/2026, as approved by the Governor and Executive
Council.

Total payments under this Agreement shall not exceed $750,000 and shall be expended consistent with the
payment schedule in Exhibit C.

The contractor will develop a program to establish projects that address workforce issues, gaps and needs
within the State of New Hampshire. The program will develop strategies for effectively serving individuals with
barriers to employment and for coordinating programs and services among one-stop partners and develop
alternative evidence-based programs that enhance the choices available to eligible youth and which
encourage youth to reenter and complete secondary education, enroll in postsecondary education and
advanced training, progress through a career pathway, and enter into unsubsidized employment that leads
to economic self-sufficiency.

The contractor will create a program for foster care youth, as well as youth who have exited foster care, ages
14-26 with assistance to lead successful, independent lives. Providing a combination of supportive
employment, vocational mentorship, and individualized/person centered support to mitigate barriers to
independence/stability: the contractor seeks to reach youth who would benefit from flexible, customized
assistance.

Funds authorized under this Agreement are for the sole purpose of implementing a program other than those
activities identified in SECTION 3 — Proposed Scope of Work outlined in RFP #DBEA 2023-12, released
2/27/2023 - and/or in accordance with US DDL WlOA program rules and regulations.

Deliverables

1. The contractor will assist participants in identifying their interests, strengths, goals, and barriers, and
provide them with individualized support to help meet basic needs and make progress towards goals.

2. The contractor will assist youth exiting the foster care system achieve stable housing, employment, and
connections with appropriate adult service providers.

3. The contractor will assist youth aging out of the foster care system in establishing self-sufficiency and
a healthy lifestyle as independent adults living in the community.

4. The contractor will assist youth in advancing their careers by utilizing virtual career exploration
support.

5. The contractor will continue to build its network of potential employers, vocational mentors, and
donors by leveraging members' connections within the business community.
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6. The contractor will collaborate with partners to track data and outcomes for program participants and
generate reports for internal and external stakeholders.

Timeline

To achieve all outcomes, the following timeline is planned for 5/31/2023 through 6/30/2026. All dates are
tentative and contingent upon the contract award date. Unexpected delays that will result in changes to the
timeline will be communicated in writing to OWO.
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EXHIBIT C

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT

Agreement Period; Effective upon Governor & Councii Approvai - 6/30/2026

Contractor: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

This cost reimbursement Agreement for services between Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and
Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity (OWO) will be for a term
effective upon Governor & Council Approvai and terminating on 6/30/2026, as approved by the
Governor and Executive Council.

Total payments under this Agreement shall not exceed $750,000 as reflected below and shall be expended
consistent with the payment schedule.

1. Subject to Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. compliance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, and for services provided consistent with the Scope of Services as outlined in Exhibit 8
and the RFP, BEA/OWO shall reimburse Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. up to a maximum total
payment of $750,000.

2. Payments for services are limited to reimbursement for expenses incurred in the fulfillment of this
Agreement upon satisfactory completion of deliverables as outlined in Exhibit B. Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc.

3. See below the proposed payment schedule. Scheduled activities may fluctuate, which may change
the actual invoice amount. In total, invoiced amounts shall not exceed $750,000.

a. At a minimum, all invoices shall be submitted monthly and in a format that includes the
contractor's organization information, date of the invoice, due date, an invoice number, the
services provided, the time period under which those services were provided, and the amount

due.

4. An authorized representative of the contractor must sign request(s) for payment.

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required deliverables as defined in Exhibit B of this
contract.

6. Request(s) for payment for services performed shall be payable to Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
in accordance with the State of NH's 30-day statutory payment schedule.
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Invoices shall be sent to; Joseph.A.Dolron@llvefree.nh.gov
Office of Workforce Opportunity
100 N. Main Street

Concord. NH 03301

Payment shall be made to: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
55 Auburn Street

Manchester. NH 03103

14. Easter Seals New Hampshire, inc. shall maintain sufficient documentation on file In their offices
to support Invoice, funds, and make such documentation available for review by authorized
BEA/OWO staff and/or Its auditors, as necessary.

15. BEA/OWO reserves the right to request ad hoc financial Information In the event further Information
Is needed to evaluate program effectiveness as deemed reasonable and necessary by BEA/OWO
and/or the State of New Hampshire.

16. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. shall adhere to all fiscal management policies and procedures
stipulated in the body of this Agreement, and all other applicable WiOA, federal. State and BEA/OWO
cash management regulations and policies.

17. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Is solely responsible for paying to BEA/OWO any disallowed costs
associated with the misappropriation of federal funds. Disallowed costs may not be paid with federal
funds, regardless of the funding source.

18. BEA/OWO reserves the right to Increase and/or decrease Agreement funds subject to continued
availability of federal funds, satisfactory performance of services, and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council.

19. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. use of funds In this Agreement must be In accordance with any
applicable Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) program assurances.

20. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Is prohibited from using federal funds awarded under this
Agreement for the following items and/or activities: automobiles; lobbying; real property and
Improvements; cost of Interest payments; membership dues; professional license; annual professional
dues or fees; finance charges, late fees or penalties; and depreciation charges. This is not Intended
to be an all-inclusive list.

21. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld. In whole or In part, In the event of non-compliance
with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or If the said
services or products have not been satisfactorily completed In accordance with the terms and
conditions, of this agreement.
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EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): Title I Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WlOA)
Programs

Agreement Period: Effective upon Governor & Council Approval through 6/30/2026

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned,
to any person for influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency,
a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress
in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sut>-grantee or subcontractor).

2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-
grantee or sub-contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL,
(Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as
Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sut>-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Cathy Kuhn. Chief Operating Officer

(Contractor Repres^tative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. 05/01/2023

(Contractor Name) (Date)
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EXHIBIT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as
identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Business and Economic Affairs (BEA)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when BEA determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, BEA may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to B E A to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions. ■

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by BEA.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibillty and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in

all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).
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9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information
of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the
ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, If a participant In a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended,
debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other
remedies available to the Federal government, BEA may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

1. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

b. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or
had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State
or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

c. are not presently indicted for othenwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(l)(b) of this certification; and

d. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

2. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined
in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such prospective
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include
this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all

solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

or Repr^i
Cathv Kuhn. Chief Operating Officer

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
05/01/2023

(Contractor Name) (Date)
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EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING

COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT

OF 1973, as

AMENDED AND AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

The Contractor hereby agrees that it will comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended, and American's with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, and all requirements imposed by the
applicable regulations {45 CFR Part 84) and guidelines and interpretations issued pursuant thereto.

Pursuant to subsection 84.5(a) of the regulations (45 CFR 84.5(a)), the Contractor gives this Assurance in
consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal grants, loans, contracts, (except
procurement contracts and contracts of Insurance or guaranty), property, discounts, or other federal financial
assistance extended by BEA/OWO after the date of this Assurance, including payments or other assistance
made after such date on applications for federal financial assistance that were approved before such date.
The Contractor recognizes and agrees that such federal financial assistance will be extended in reliance on
the representation and agreements made in this Assurance and that the United States will have the right to
enforce this Assurance through lawful means. This Assurance is binding on the Contractor, its successors,
transferees, and assignees, and the person or person whose signatures appear below are authorized to sign
this Assurance on behalf of the recipient.

This Assurance obligates the recipient for the period during which federal financial assistance is extended to
it by BEA/OWO or, where the assistance is in the form of real property. For the period provided for In
subsection 84.5(b) of the regulation (45 CFR 84.5(b)).

Cathv Kuhn. Chief Operating Officer
(Cont>adbr Repfe^ntative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
05/01/2023

(Contractor Name) (Date)
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■  ■ - • • • ■ ' a

EXHIBIT G

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and164 and those
parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business Associate' shall
mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to
protected health Information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity" shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set" in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aooreaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations' in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, Title
XIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. 'HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-
191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information,
45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Individual" in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and
shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business
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Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

I. 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law' in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

n. "Securitv Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information* means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing
organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under
45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

(2) Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees
and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a
violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

a. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances
from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as
required by law or for the purpose for which It was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement
from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D,
Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breacK

b. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit B of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure
on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity
has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects
to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity
has exhausted all remedies.

c. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional
restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by
any additional security safeguards.
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(3) Qbtiaatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy OfHcer of Covered Entity, in writing, any
use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident Involving
Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1. Sec.
13402.

b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth
in. the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1. Sec. 13401, and Sec. 13404.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3) b and (3) k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third-party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor's
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of
enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health
information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate's compliance with
the terms of the Agreement.

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 1W.524.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such

disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

1. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance.with 45 CFR Section 164.528.
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j. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days fonn/ard such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsit)ility of responding to forwarded
requests. However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered
Entity or the Business Associate to violate HiPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business
Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

k. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity; all PHI received from or created
or received by the Business Associate In connection with the Agreement and shall not retain any
copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of
the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to
extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
Associate maintains such PHI. if Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business
Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the
PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObliaatlQns of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation($) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent
that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit G. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that
neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall

have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit G,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
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changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to
permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit G or the application thereof to any person{s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be
given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit
G are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit G regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS V\flHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit G.

NH Department of Business and Economic Affairs Easter Seals New Hampshire, inc.

{State Agency Name) (Contractor Name)

S
(Signature of Authorized Representative) (Signature of Alit^rized Representative)

Taylor Caswell, Commissioner Cathy Kuhn, Chief Operating Officer
(Name of Authorized Representative) (Name of Authorized Representative)

05/04/2023 05/01/2023

(Date) (Date)
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EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE

WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions executes the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-orantees and sub-contractors),
prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. The certificate set out below is a material
representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification
or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to: NH Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity, 100 North
Main Street, Suite 100, Concord, NH 03301.

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition
of employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal

drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice
under subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice
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of such conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including
position title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was
working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of
such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice
under subparagraph (d){2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and
including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance
or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance: 555 Auburn Street Manchester, NH 03103

Period Covered bv this Certification: From; Effective upon Governor & Council Approval
To: 6/30/2026

Contractor Name: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Name & Title of Authorized Representative: Cathy Kuhn, Chief Operating Officer

Representative Signature: Date: 05/01/2023
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EXHIBIT I

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

Every client has the right to privacy and confidentially of his or her record. Information contained in an
individual's case record is designated confidential under state and federal law.

All staff and employees of the Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity
(BEA/OWO), including agencies under agreement with 6EA/0W0, are under an equal obligation to treat as
confidential any information they may acquire, by any means, about an applicant, a recipient or former
recipient.

The fact that an individual is a current or past participant in any US Department of Labor funded program
administered by BEA/OWO is considered confidential information. Information about a client may be shared
among staff of BEA/OWO (or contract agency) only as is necessary for the administration of the program(s)
from which the individual is receiving services.

No information is to be shared outside of BEA/OWO (or the contractor) with anyone except with the informed
written authorization of the client or the person authorized to give consent on the client's behalf. Clients must
be advised of the information that will be shared and the time period this sharing will take place.

The Contractor and BEA/OWO shall share information with one another that is related to the servlce(s)
provided and administration of the program as described in the contract without an additional release.

Without a specific release, discussions cannot include mention of any client names or facts that would identify
an individual. Information cannot be given over the phone unless it is given directly to the client or an
individual whom the client has designated, in writing, to act in their behalf. This prohibition applies to police
officers, legislators, lawyers and others who assert a need to know confidential information. All third parties
must provide written authorization of the client to discuss or receive confidential information.

Breaches of confidentiality will be regarded as a serious offense and grounds for disciplinary action.

The Contractor agrees to ensure that a signed confidentiality form is placed in the personnel file of all staff
funded with Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WlOA) funds.

Cathv Kuhn. Chief Qperatina Officer
(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
05/01/2023

(Contractor Name) (Date)
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the Stale ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certily that EASTER SEALS NEW

HAMPSHIRE. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November

06, 1967. 1 further certily that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 61290

Certificate Number; 0006194169

lA.

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 , Cynthia Ross^ , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., which Includes Manchester
Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center, a program of Easterseals NH. .

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _October 12, 2022 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Maureen Beaureoard. President & CEO: Lisabritt Solskv Stevens. Chief Govt Relations &
Compliance Officer: Catherine Kuhn. Chief Qperatina Officer: Tina Sharbv. Chief Human Resources Officer:
Catherine Kuhn. Chief Qperatino Officer: Peter Hastincs. Chief Information Officer: and Pamela Hawkes. Chief
Development Officer (mav list more than one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

are duly authorized on behalf of Easter Seals New Hampshire. Inc. and Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation
Center to enter into contracts or agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may In his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:_April 20, 2023
Signature of Elect^Officer
Name: Cynthia Ross
Title: Assistant Secretary

Rev. 10/12/2022



Client#: 497072 EASTESEA7

ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

4/20/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

N^MEf^ Linda Jaeger, CiC
Ko. EX..: 855 874-0123 No.:
ADoliEss: iinda.jaeger@usi.eom

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAJC/

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

Easter Seals New Hampshire, inc.

555 Auburn Street

Manchester, NH 03103

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL

INSR
SUBR

WYP POLICY NUMBER
POyCY EFF

(MMAo/YYYY.
POUCY EXP

(miwdd/yyvy. LIMITS

A X COMMERCML G•NERAL LiABIUTY

)E 1 X| OCCUR
li Liab

X X PHPK2454548 1)9/01/2022 09/01/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE si.000,000

CLAIMS-MAI $100,000

X Professions MEO EXP (Any one person) $5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000
GE41 AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 1 1 JECT 1 X [ LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO $3,000,000

$

A AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY X X PHPK2454546 09/01/2022 09/01/2023
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

si ,000,000

X

X

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per peraon) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per ecddeni] $

X
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPar eedrienn $

$

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LlAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

X X PHUB829174 09/01/2022 09/01/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $15,000,000

AGGREGATE $15,000,000

DEO X RETENTION $$1 OK $

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABILITY y/N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/HXECUTIVEl 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory In NH) ' '
II yea. deschbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

PER OTH-
.STATinr FH

E.L EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $

A EDP PHPK2454548 09/01/2022 09/01/2023 $1,619,050

Special Form inci Theft

$500 Deductible
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddltiotuI Ramarfct Schadula, may ba attachad M moraapaca la raqulrad)

Supptementai Names*:Easter Seais ME, inc., Manchester Aicohoi Rehabiiitation Center, inc., dba The Farnum
Center, Easter Seais VT, inc.,*. The General Liability policy includes a Blanket Automatic Additional

Insured Endorsement that provides Additional insured and a Blanket Waiver of Subrogation status to the
Certificate Hoider, only when there is a written contract or written agreement between the Named insured
and the Certificate Hoider that requires such status, and only with regard to the above referenced on
(See Attached Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Dept. of Business and Economic Affairs

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

1 Eagie Square, Suite 100

Concord, NH 03301

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 2
#S39812093/M37084050

(D1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SCLCA



DESCRIPTIONS (Continued from Page 1)
behalf of the Named Insured. The General Liability policy contains a special endorsement with "Primary and
Non-Contributory" wording.

SAGITTA 25.3 (2016/03) 2 of 2

#S39812093/M37084050



/KCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMIOOfYYYY)

4/20/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Hays CMi^anies, Inc.

980 Washington St., Suite 325

Dedham MA 02026

NS*Et''* Timothy Orcutt .
PHONE FAX
lAIC. Nn F*fl- lAJC. NO):

a^'ress- Timothy.Orcutt6bbrown.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC «

INSURER A The North River Insurance Company 21105

INSURED

Easter Seals Kew Hampshire,Inc

555 Auburn Street

Manchester NH 03103

INSURERS

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUM6ER:23-24 WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

OTBC
itiaaTYPE OP INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EPF
tMM/DO/YYYY>

POLICY EXP
mutDorrrm LIMITS

IHSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LWBILITY

CLAIMSAtAOE n OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

TOXJBTrBTCTJTEB
PREMISES <Ea occufTWteal

MED EXP (Any one p<f»on)

PERSONAL t AOV INJURY

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q Se^ Q LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

AUTOMOBRE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa >eddeni>

ANY AUTO

Aa OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BOOILY INJURY (Per parson)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS

BOOILY INJURY (Par KdOam)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddemt

UMBRELLA LIAfi

EXCESS UAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFPICERMEMaER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yas. dai^ba uridar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balovr

"PER 1 |6Tm.
statute

I r r*

□
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1,000.000

<06-739207-7 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 EL. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Ramarka Scftaduia. may lia attached H more apace la raqirirM)
E)videnc« of insurancB

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Business and
Economic Affairs

1 Eagle Square
Ste 100

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

James Hays/TADRIG

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (201401)

1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reservBd.
Tho ACORD name and logo aro registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(Easter Seals NH), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of August 31,2022 and
2021, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively,
the financial statements).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Easter Seals NH as of August 31, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in their net assets, functional
expenses and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmem Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United S>i3XQS {Government Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Easter Seals NH and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Managementfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Easter Seals NH's ability to continue as
a going concern for a period of within one year affer the date that the financial statements are issued or available
to be issued.



Board of Directors

Easter Seals New Hampshire, inc. and Subsidiaries

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Easter Seals NH's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Easter Seals NH's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Other Financial Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying other financial information Is presented for purposes of additional analysis and
is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.



Board of Directors

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Governmeni Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 20, 2022
on our consideration of Easter Seals NH's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Easter Seals
NH's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Governmeni Auditing Standards in considering Easter Seals NH's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

f'ietomonf LVC.
Manchester, New Hampshire
December 20,2022



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $14,837,761 $14,389,013
Restricted cash 79,819 82,461
Short-term investments, at fair value 10,055,639 10,681,421
Accounts receivable from related entity 394,316 _

Program and other accounts receivable 9,748,641 8,593,338
Contributions receivable, net 172,253 224,865
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 907.909 633.702

Total current assets 36,196,338 34,604,800

Assets limited as to use 1,837,445 2,357,939
Investments, at fair value 13,419,355 15,889,181
Investment in related entity 1,742 _

Other assets 349,154 378,877
Fixed assets, net 27.216.243 29.899.801

$79,020,277

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 2,538,018 $ 2,312,551
Accrued expenses 6,450,559 6,895,135
Deferred revenue 4,598,645 1,862,583
Current portion of interest rate swap agreement 579,174 387,067
Current portion of long-term debt 1.016.962 1.222.914

Total current liabilities 15,183,358 12,680,250

Other liabilities 2,130,322 2,682,812
Interest rate swap agreement, less current portion 416,010 1,851,184
Long-term debt, less current portion, net 17.861.006 28.771.371

Total liabilities 35,590,696 45,985,617

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions 37,450,866 31,026,464
With donor restrictions 5.978.715 6.II8.5I7

Total net assets 43.429.581 37.144.981

$79.020.277 $83.n0..^98

See accompanying notes.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2022

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
Public support and revenue:

Public support:
Contributions, net $  764,760 $ 368,967 ;B  1,133,727
Special events, net of related

d i rect costs of $ 1,018,200 1,891,609 83,710 1,975,319
Annual campaigns, net of related

direct costs of $43,900 232,664 16,362 249,026
Bequests 4,160 — 4,160
Net assets released from restrictions 449.927 f449.9271 -

Total public support 3,343,120 19,112 3,362,232

Revenue:

Fees and tuition 61,914,620 — 61,914,620
Grants 31,630,150 — 31,630,150
Gain on extinguishment of debt 9,250,000 — 9,250,000
Dividend and interest income 834,614 12,543 847,157
Rental income 31,762 — 31,762
Other 394.652 - 394.652

Total revenue 104.055.798 12.543 104.068.341

Total public support and revenue 107,398,918 31,655 107,430,573

Operating expenses:
Program services:.

Public health education 26,267 — 26,267
Professional education 160,997 — 160,997
Direct services 85.247.641 - 85.247.641

Total program services 85,434,905 - 85,434,905

Supporting services:
Management and general 9,493,211 — 9,493,211
Fundraising 2.154..599 - 2.154.599

Total supporting services 11.647.810 - 11.647.810

Total functional expenses 97,082,715 - 97,082,715

Support of National programs 130.276 - 130.276

Total operating expenses 97.212.991 - 97.212.991

Increase in net assets from operations 10,185,927 31,655 10,217,582



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHmE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2022

Without

Donor

Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net unrealized and realized losses on

investments, net
Increase in fair value of beneficial

interest in trust held by others
Loss on sales, disposals and impairment

of fixed assets

Increase (decrease) in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

With

Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

:  1,243,067 $ $ 1,243,067

(3,063,497) (182,735) (3,246,232)

- 11,278 11,278

0.941.095^ _ 0.941.0951

G.761.5251 071.4571 0.932,9821

6,424,402 (139,802) 6,284,600

31.026.464 6.118.517 37.144.981

$37.450.866

See accompanying notes.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2021

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions, net $  732,689 $ 327,971 $ 1,060,660

Special events, net of related
direct costs of $643,937 1,171,144 208,832 1,379,976

Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $42,502 418,831 37,458 456,289

Bequests 4,091 - 4,091

Net assets released from restrictions 837.627 f837.627^ —

Total public support 3,164,382 (263,366) 2,901,016

Revenue:

Fees and tuition 60,020,761 - 60,020,761

Grants 33,096,374 - 33,096,374

Dividend and interest income 625,522 8,878 634,400

Rental income 29,775 - 29,775

Other 549.546 - 549.546

Total revenue 94.321.978 8.878 94.330.856

Total public support and revenue 97,486,360 (254,488) 97,231,872

Operating expenses:
Program services:

Public health education 42,458 - 42,458

Professional education 3,192 - 3,192

Direct services 82.595.976 - 82.595.976

Total program services 82,641,626 - 82,641,626

Supporting services:
Management and general 9,427,520 - 9,427,520

Fundraising 1.249.556 — 1.249.556

Total supporting services 10.677.076 - 10.677.076

Total functional expenses 93,318,702 - 93,318,702

Support of National programs 105.185 - 105.185

Total operating expenses 93.423.887 - 93.423.887

Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations 4,062,473 (254,488) 3,807,985



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2021

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swap $  658,823 $ $  658,823
Net unrealized and realized gains on

investments, net 1,830,767 201,783 2,032,550
Decrease in fair value of beneficial

interest in trust held by others - (696) (696)
Loss on sales and disposals of fixed assets (40,958) - (40,958)
Contribution of net assets from acquisition - see Note 15 702.572 - 702.572

3.151.204 201.087 3.352.291

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 7,213,677 (53,401) 7,160,276

Net assets at beginning of year 23.812.787 6.I7I.9I8 29.984.705

Net assets at end of year $31,026,464 $37,144,981

See accompanying notes.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended August 31, 2022

Total Program
and Supporting

Proeram Services Sunnortinp Services Services Exoenses

Public Profes Manage
Health sional Direct ment and Fund-

Education Education Services Total General Raisine Total 2022 2021

Salaries and related expenses $ 5,780 $ $65,741,230 $65,747,010 $6,336,634 $1,061,221 $ 7,397,855 73,144,865 $71,102,855
Professional fees 2,613 127,466 8,234,642 8,364,721 2,066,017 335,013 2,401,030 10,765,751 10,125,183
Supplies 928 5,500 1,777,921 1,784,349 50,158 33,284 83,442 1,867,791 2,160,860
Telephone 8 - 529,613 529,621 200,186 2,696 202,882 732,503 699,817
Postage and shipping

- 229 35,031 35,260 15,776 10,447 26,223 61,483 52,684
Occupancy - - 2,472,697 2,472,697 354,406 58,116 412,522 2,885,219 2,798,022
Outside printing, artwork and media 1,303 - 8,519 9,822 309 37,569 37,878 47,700 20,999
Travel -

- 1,540,938 1,540,938 13,280 864 14,144 1,555,082 1,250,785
Conventions and meetings 6 27,802 98,989 126,797 15,852 22,425 38,277 165,074 77,801
Specific assistance to individuals - - 1,786,297 1,786,297 556 _ 556 1,786,853 1,379,563
Dues and subscriptions -

- 17,296 17,296 11,084 955 12,039 29,335 43,126
Minor equipment purchases

and equipment rentals 7,926 - 136,235 144,161 74,508 33,003 107,511 251,672 316,808
Ads, fees and miscellaneous 7,703 - 413,578 421,281 31,740 552,377 584,117 1,005,398 388,306
Interest - - 642,590 642,590 137,563 — 137,563 780,153 908,999
Depreciation and amortization —

— 1-812-065 1-812.065 185.142 6.629 191.771 2.003.836 1.992.894

S26.2fi7 $160,997 $85,247,641 $85 434 905 .$9,493,211 $2,154 599 $11.647 810 97.082.715 $93 318 702

0.03% 0.16% 87.81% 88.00% 9.78% 2.22% 12.00% 100.00% 100.00%

See accompanying notes.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended August 31, 2021

Program Services Supporting Services

Total Program
and Supporting

Services Expenses
Public Profes Manage
Health sional Direct ment and Fund-

Education Education Services Total General Raising Total 2021

Salaries and related expenses $ 11,096 $  - $64,176,399 $64,187,495 $6,044,992 $:  870,368 $ 6,915,360 $71,102,855
Professional fees 17,291 - 7,842,755 7,860,046 2,100,809 164,328 2,265,137 10,125,183
Supplies 790 - 1,989,877 1,990,667 131,147 39,046 170,193 2,160,860
Telephone - - 513,962 513,962 184,045 1,810 185,855 699,817
Postage and shipping

-
- 25,110 25,110 19,618 7,956 27,574 52,684

Occupancy - - 2,389,582 2,389,582 338,318 70,122 408,440 2,798,022
Outside printing, artwork and media 5,090 - 4,927 10,017 5,130 5,852 10,982 20,999
Travel 7 - 1,236,068 1,236,075 13,024 1,686 14,710 1,250,785
Conventions and meetings

- 3,192 55,272 58,464 16,905 2,432 19,337 77,801
Specific assistance to individuals - - 1,379,455 1,379,455 108 108 1,379,563
Dues and subscriptions -

- 25,725 25,725 13,398 4.003 17,401 43,126
Minor equipment purchases

and equipment rentals 775 - 153,295 154,070 158,601 4,137 162,738 316,808
Ads, fees and miscellaneous 7,409 - 222,711 230,120 84,777 73,409 158,186 388,306
Interest

-
- 764,208 764,208 144,791 _ 144,791 908,999

Depreciation and amortization
— - 1.816.630 1.816.630 171.857 4.407 176.264 1.992.894

% 42.458 $ 3,192 $82,595,976 $82,641,626 $9,427,520 $. 1.249..5.56 $10,677,076 $93.318 702.

0.05% 0.00% 88.51% 88.56% 10.10% 1.34% 11.44%

O"-
O
o

o
o

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended August 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:

Increase in net assets $ 6,284,600 $ 7,160,276

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 2,003,836 1,992,894

Bond issuance costs amortization 6,110 6,110
(Increase) decrease in fair value of beneficial

interest in trust held by others (11,278) 696

Net loss on sales, disposals and impairment of fixed assets 1,941,095 40,958

Change in fair value of interest rate swap (1,243,067) (658,823)
Gain on extinguishment of debt (9,250,000) -

Gain on conversion of long-term debt to grant revenue - (1,140,000)
Net unrealized and realized losses (gains) on investments, net 3,246,232 (2,032,550)
Donor restricted contributions (368,967) (327,971)
Contribution of net assets from acquisition - (702,572)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Program and other accounts receivable (1,155,303) 706,473

Accounts receivable from related entity (394,316) -

Contributions receivable 52,612 105,080

Prepaid expenses and other current assets (274,207) 77,756

Other assets 41,001 16,437

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (392,927) 22,693

Deferred revenue 2,736,062 496,622

Other liabilities (552.4901 191.374

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,668,993 5,955,453

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets (1.453,563) (2,184,030)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 366,008 20,323

Change in investments, net (150,624) (7,132,124)
Change in assets limited as to use 520,494 (203,417)
Investment in related entity (1.742) -

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
acquired from acquisition — 365.413

Net cash used by investing activities (719,427) (9.133,835)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt (1,872,427) (1,074,073)
Proceeds from long-term debt - 10,161,364

Donor restricted contributions 368.967 327.971

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (1.503.4601 9.415.262
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended August 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 446,106 $ 6,236,880

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 14.471.474 8.234.594

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year S14.917.580 S14.471.474

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid S 742.000 S 875.000

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:

Fixed asset purchases included in accounts payable at end of year S -

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

1. Corporate Organization and Purpose

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH) consists of various separate
nonprofit entities: Easter Seals New Hampshire, inc. (parent and service corporation); Manchester
Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center (Famum Center); Easter Seals Maine, Inc.(up to August 31,2022); and
Easter Seals Vermont, Inc. (Easter Seals VT). Additionally, Champlin Place, Inc., was formed on
June 30,2022 and is 100% owned by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Champlin Place, Inc. is the sole
General Partner of Champlin Place Limited Partnership (the Partnership). Champlin Place, Inc. has a
0.01% ownership interest in the Partnership, but oversees certain management and operational aspects of
the Partnership subject to the terms set forth in the limited partnership agreement. See note 16. Easter
Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is the sole member of each subsidiary. Easter Seals NH is affiliated with
Easter Seals, Inc. (the national headquarters for the organization).

Effective August 31, 2022, Easter Seals Maine, Inc. was dissolved, and all assets were transferred to
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Easter Seals NH's purpose is to provide plans of care comprised of thoughtfully integrated services that
help those with varied abilities live, learn, work, and play throughout their lifetimes. Easter Seals NH
operates programs throughout New Hampshire and Vermont.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles ofConsolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and the
subsidiaries of which it is the sole member as described in note I. Significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash. Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Easter Seals NH considers all highly liquid securities purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of cash, and money market funds, excluding assets
limited as to use.

Easter Seals NH maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed amounts guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Financial instruments which
subject Easter Seals NH to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents and investments. Easter Seals
NH's investment portfolio consists of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk.
Investments that exceeded 10% of investments include the Lord Abbett Short Duration Income A Fund

with a balance of $ 10,055,500 and $9,677,021 as of August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Restricted cash represents reserve accounts held by New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority
(NHHFA) for insurance, taxes, replacement costs and operations as well as security deposit accounts held
for tenants.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash reported
within the consolidated statements of financial position that sum to the total of the same such amounts
shown in the consolidated statements of cash flows at August 31:

2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents $14,837,761 $14,389,013
Restricted cash 79.819 82.461

$14.917.580 $14.471.474

Assels Limited as to Use and Investments

Assets limited as to use consists of cash and cash equivalents, short-term certificates of deposit with
original maturities greater than 90 days, but less than one year, and investments. Investments are stated
at fair value. Realized gains and losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis.
The changes in net unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments are recorded in other non-
operating expenses, gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and
changes in net assets. Donated securities are stated at fair value determined at the date of donation.

Beneficial Interest in Trust

Easter Seals NH is the beneficiary of a trust held by others recorded in other assets in the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial position. Easter Seals NH has recorded as an asset the fair value of
its interest in the trust and such amount is included in net assets with donor restrictions, based on the
underlying donor stipulations. The change in the interest due to fair value change is recorded within other
non-operating expenses, gains and losses as activity with donor restrictions.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and expenditures for major renovations are
capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
underlying assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter
of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset.

Fixed assets obtained by Easter Seals NH as a result of acquisitions on or after September I, 2011 are
recorded at estimated fair value as of the date of the acquisition in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles guidance for acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity.

Donated property and equipment not subject to donor stipulated conditions is recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as
restricted support or, if significant uncertainties exist, as deferred revenue pending resolution of the
uncertainties. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of property and equipment are recorded
as support without donor restrictions. See also note 8.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Lone-Lived Assets

When there is an indication of impairment, management considers whether long-lived assets are impaired
by comparing gross future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from utilizing the assets to
their carrying amounts. If cash flows are not sufTlcient to recover the carrying amount of the assets,
impairment has occurred, and the assets are written down to their fair value. Significant estimates and
assumptions are required to be made by management in order to evaluate possible impairment.

Certain long-lived assets were deemed impaired in 2022. See note 8. No long-lived assets were deemed
impaired at August 31, 2021.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are being amortized to interest expense using the straight-line method over the
repayment period of the related bonds, or the expected time until the next refinancing, whichever is
shorter. Interest expense recognized on the amortization of bond issuance costs during 2022 and 2021
was $6,110. The bond issuance costs are presented as a component of long-term debt on the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Revenue Recoenition and Proeram and Other Accounts Receivable

Easter Seals NH accounts for revenues (mainly relating to fees and tuition in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets) under Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and determines the amount of revenue to be
recognized through application of the following steps:

•  Identification of the contract with a customer;

•  Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;
•  Determination of the transaction price;

•  Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
•  Recognition of revenue when or as Easter Seals NH satisfies the performance obligations.

Easter Seals NH determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and services
provided, reduced by any applicable discounts, contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, or
explicit and implicit price concessions provided to groups or individuals. A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer products or services that are distinct. Determining
whether products and services are distinct performance obligations that should be accounted for
separately or combined as one unit of accounting may require significant judgement.

A significant portion of Easter Seals NH's revenues are derived through arrangements with third-party
payors that provide for payment at amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements
include discounted charges and prospectively determined payments. As such, Easter Seals NH is
dependent on these payors in order to carry out its operating activities. There is at least a reasonable
possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term. Differences
between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or
payable are included in fees and tuition in the year that such amounts become known.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Lone-Lived Assets

When there is an indication of impairment, management considers whether long-lived assets are impaired
by comparing gross future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from utilizing the assets to
their carrying amounts. If cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the assets,
impairment has occurred, and the assets are written down to their fair value. Significant estimates and
assumptions are required to be made by management in order to evaluate possible impairment.

Certain long-lived assets were deemed impaired in 2022. See note 8. No long-lived assets were deemed
impaired at August 31, 2021.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are being amortized to interest expense using the straight-line method over the
repayment period of the related bonds, or the expected time until the next refinancing, whichever is
shorter. Interest expense recognized on the amortization of bond issuance costs during 2022 and 2021
was $6,110. The bond issuance costs are presented as a component of long-term debt on the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Revenue Recoenition and Proeram and Other Accounts Receivable

Easter Seals NH accounts for revenues (mainly relating to fees and tuition in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets) under Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and determines the amount of revenue to be
recognized through application of the following steps:

•  Identification of the contract with a customer;

•  Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;
•  Determination of the transaction price;

•  Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
•  Recognition of revenue when or as Easter Seals NH satisfies the performance obligations.

Easter Seals NH determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and services
provided, reduced by any applicable discounts, contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, or
explicit and implicit price concessions provided to groups or individuals. A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer products or services that are distinct. Determining
whether products and services are distinct performance obligations that should be accounted for
separately or combined as one unit of accounting may require significant judgement.

A significant portion of Easter Seals NH's revenues are derived through arrangements with third-party
payors that provide for payment at amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements
include discounted charges and prospectively determined payments. As such, Easter Seals NH is
dependent on these payors in order to carry out its operating activities. There is at least a reasonable
possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term. Differences
between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or
payable are included in fees and tuition in the year that such amounts become known.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenues are recognized when performance obligations are satisfied, or attributable to the period in which
specific terms of the funding agreement are satisfied, and to the extent that expenses have been incurred
for the purposes specified by the funding source. Revenue balances in excess of the foregoing amounts
are deferred until any restrictions are met or allowable expenditures are incurred.

The collection of outstanding receivables from third-party payors, patients and other clients is Easter Seals
NH's primary source of cash and is critical to its operating performance. The primary collection risks
relate to uninsured accounts, including accounts for which the primary insurance carrier has paid the
amounts covered by the applicable agreement, but individual responsibility amounts (deductibles and
copayments) remain outstanding. Implicit price concessions relate primarily to amounts due directly from
patients and other clients. Estimated implicit price concessions are recorded for all uninsured accounts,
regardless of the aging of those accounts. Accounts are .written off when all reasonable internal and
external collection efforts have been performed. The estimates for implicit price concessions are based
upon management's assessment of historical write-offs and expected net collections, business and
economic conditions, trends in federal, state and private employer health care coverage and other
collection indicators. Management relies on the results of detailed reviews of historical write-offs and
collections at facilities and programs that represent a majority of revenues and accounts receivable (the
"hindsight analysis") as a primary source of information in estimating the collectability of accounts
receivable. Management performs the hindsight analysis regularly, utilizing rolling accounts receivable
collection and write-off data. Management believes its regular updates to the estimated implicit price
concession amounts provide reasonable estimates of revenues and valuations of accounts receivable.
These routine, regular changes in estimates have not resulted in material adjustments to the valuations of
accounts receivable or period-to-period comparisons of operations. At August 31, 2022 and 2021,
estimated implicit price concessions of $855,900 and $1,079,600, respectively, had been recorded as
reductions to program and other accounts receivable balances to enable Easter Seals NH to record
revenues and accounts receivable at the estimated amounts expected to be collected.

Unconditional contributions are recognized when the promise to give is made and are recorded at the net
present value of estimated future cash flows.

Advertisins

Easter Seals NH's policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services based mainly on time
records and estimates made by Easter Seals NH's management.

Charity Care (Unaudited)

Easter Seals NH has a formal charity care policy under which program fees are subsidized as determined
by the Board of Directors. Free and subsidized services are rendered in accordance with decisions made
by the Board of Directors and, at established charges, amounted to approximately $8,099,000 and
$6,850,000 for the years ended August 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHmE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals Maine, Inc. (prior to dissolution on August 31, 2022),
Easter Seals VT and Famum Center are exempt from both federal and state income taxes under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, with the exception of certain federal taxes applicable to
not-for-profit entities.

Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a tax
position historically taken on various tax exposure items including unrelated business income or tax
status. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions
taken or positions expected to be taken in income tax returns when such positions are judged to not meet
the "more-iikely-than-not" threshold, based upon the technical merits of the position.

Champlin Place, Inc. is a for-profit organization subject to Federal and state taxes. Deferred income taxes
of Champlin Place, Inc. are computed using the asset and liability method under which deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are computed based on temporary differences between the financial statement
and tax bases of assets and/or liabilities which will result in taxable or deductible amounts on future tax

returns. Champlin Place, Inc. records a valuation allowance against any deferred tax assets when it
determines it is unlikely that the tax asset will be realized. No significant deferred income taxes have
been realized for Champlin Place, Inc. since the entity's inception.

Management has evaluated tax positions taken by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals Maine,
Inc., Easter Seals VT and Farnum Center on their respective filed tax returns and concluded that the
organizations have maintained their tax-exempt status, do not have any significant unrelated business
income, and have taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to or disclosure in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. Champlin Place, Inc.'s management has determined
that Champlin Place, Inc. has not taken, nor expects to take, any uncertain tax positions in any income
tax return.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Estimates are used in accounting for explicit and implicit price concessions in revenue,
workers' compensation liabilities and contingencies.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Accounting guidance requires that Easter Seals NH record as an asset or liability the fair value of the
Interest rate swap agreement described in note II. Easter Seals NH is exposed to repayment loss equal
to the net amounts receivable under the swap agreement (not the notional amount) in the event of
nonperformance of the other party to the swap agreement. However, Easter Seals NH does not anticipate
nonperformance and does not obtain collateral from the other party.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

As of August 31, 2022, and 2021, Easter Seals NH had recognized a liability of $995,184 and $2,238,251,
respectively, as a result of the interest rate swap agreements discussed in note II. As a result of changes
in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments, Easter Seals NH recognized an increase in net
assets of $1,243,067 and $658,823 for the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, in the
accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets.

Increase (Decrease) in Nel Assets from Operations

For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major or central to the
provision of services are reported as revenue and expenses that comprise the increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations. The primary transactions reported as other non-operating expenses, gains and
losses include the adjustment to fair value of interest rate swaps, the change in the fair value of beneficial
interest in trust held by others, gains and losses on sales, disposals and impairment of fixed assets, the
contribution of assets from affiliation (see note 15) and net realized and unrealized gains and losses on
investments.

Recent Accountine Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842). Under ASU 2016-02, at the commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a
liability equivalent to the discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting
right-of-use asset. Lessees (for capital and operating leases) must apply a modified retrospective
transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented in the consolidated financial statements, with certain practical expedients available. In
July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-10, Codification Improvements to Topic 842, Leases, which seeks
to clarify ASU 2016-02 with respect to certain aspects of the update and ASU20I8-II, Leases
(Topic 842) - Targeted Improvements, which provides transition relief on comparative reporting upon
adoption of the ASU. The guidance is effective for Easter Seals NH on September 1,2022. Easter Seals
NH has evaluated the impact of the pending adoption of this standard on its consolidated financial
statements and estimates that the right-of-use asset and operating lease liability to be recorded at
September I, 2022 will approximate $2,807,000.

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-01, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation
and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. ASU 2020-07 enhances
the presentation of disclosure requirements for contributed nonfinancial assets. ASU 2020-07 requires
entities to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the statements of activities and
disclose the amount of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the statements of activities by
category that depicts the type of contributed nonfinancial assets, as well as a description of any donor-
imposed restrictions associated with the contributed nonfinancial assets and the valuation techniques used
to arrive at a fair value measure at initial recognition. ASU 2020-07 is effective for Easter Seals NH and
was adopted on September 1, 2021. The adoption of this ASU did not have a significant impact on Easter
Seals NH's consolidated financial statements.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsequent Events

Events occurring after the statement of financial position date are evaluated by management to determine
whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Management has evaluated events occurring between the end of Easter Seals NH's fiscal year end and
December 20, 2022, the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

3. Classification of Net Assets

The following provides a description of the net asset classifications represented in the Easter Seals NH
consolidated statements of financial position:

In accordance with Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), net assets are
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Net assets with
donor restrictions include contributions and endowment investment earnings subject to donor-imposed
restrictions, as well as irrevocable trusts and contributions receivable. Some donor-imposed restrictions
are temporary in nature with restrictions that are expected to be met either by actions of Easter Seals NH
and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor
stipulates that resources are to be maintained in perpetuity, the income from which is expendable to
support all activities of the organization, or as stipulated by the donor.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
as support without donor restrictions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with UPMIFA, Easter Seals NH considers the following factors in making a determination
to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the
fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic
conditions; (d) the possible effect of inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of
the organization.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the related assets
is limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets without donor
restrictions. Gains and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or
decreases in net assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation
or by law. Expirations of donor-imposed restrictions on net assets (i.e. the donor-stipulated purpose has
been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as reclassiflcations between the
applicable classes of net assets.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

3. Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Endowment Net Asset Composition bv Type of Fund

The major categories of endowment funds included in net assets with donor restrictions at August 31,
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Original Donor

Restricted Gift Accumulated

2022

Other initiatives

Operations

Total endowment net assets

2021

Other initiatives

Operations

Total endowment net assets

Chanees in Endowment Net Assets

Maintained

in Perpetuity

$1,462,085
3.838.633

S5.30Q.7I8

$1,437,096
3.712.974

$'>-1-^0070

Investment

Gains

$ 26,757

^ 26.757

$227,759

Total

$1,488,842
3.838.633

$5.327.475

$1,664,855
3.712.974

$227.759 $5.377.829

During the years ended August 31,2022 and 2021, Easter Seals NH had the following endowment-related
activities:

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2020

Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees
Net appreciation (realized and unrealized), net

Contributions

Appropriated for expenditure

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2021

Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees
Net appreciation (realized and unrealized), net

Contributions

Appropriated for expenditure

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2022

$5,256,534

105,151
56,955
41,921

f82.732^

5,377,829

66,470
12,536
96,811

(226.171)
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

3. Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Net assets were released from donor restrictions as follows for the years ended August 31:

2022 2021

Satisfaction of donor restrictions $223,756 $754,895
Release of appropriated endowment funds 226.171 82.732

S449.927 $837.627

In addition to endowment net assets, Easter Seals NH also maintains non-endowed funds. The major
categories of non-endowment funds, at August 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Without With Total Non-

Donor Donor Endowment

Restrictions Restrictions Net Assets

2022

Other initiatives $ 134,429 $466,798 $ 601,227
Operations 37.316.437 184.442 37.500.879

Total non-endowment net assets $37.450.866 $651.240 $38.102.106

2021

Other initiatives $ 3,348,849 $516,330 $ 3,865,179
Operations 27.677.615 224.358 27.901.973

Total non-endowment net assets $31.026.464 $740.688 $31.767.152

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds

may fall below the level that the donor requires Easter Seals NH to retain as a fund of permanent duration.
Deficiencies of this nature are reported in net assets with donor restrictions. There were no deficiencies
between the fair value of the investments of the endowment funds and the level required by donor
stipulation at August 31, 2022 or 2021.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2022 and 2021

3. Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at August 31:

2022 2021

Purpose restriction:
Other initiatives $ 466,798 $ 516,330
Operations 47.200 83.514

513,998 599,844
Perpetual in nature:

Original donor restricted gift amount and amounts
required to be maintained by donor 5,307,363 5,171,595

Investments, gains and income from which is donor restricted 26,757 227,759
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust 130.597 119.319

5.464.717 5.518.673

Total net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are managed in accordance with donor intent and are invested in various
portfolios.

Investment and Spendins Policies

Easter Seals NH has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-
restricted funds that Easter Seals NH must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period. Under this
policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is
intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of an appropriate market index while
assuming a moderate level of investment risk. Easter Seals NH expects its endowment funds to provide
an average rate of return over a five-year period equal to the rate of 2% over the inflation rate. Actual
returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-retum objectives, Easter Seals NH relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends). Easter Seals NH targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater
emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk
constraints.

Easter Seals NH may appropriate for distribution some or all of the earnings and appreciation on its
endowment for funding of operations. In establishing this policy, Easter Seals NH considered the
objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified
term as well as to, so long as it would not detract from Easter Seals NH's critical goals and initiatives,
provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.
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4. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, such as for operating expenses, and which are without
donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the consolidated statements of financial
position date (August 31, 2022), comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents $14,837,761
Short-term investments, at fair value 10,055,639

Program and other accounts receivable 9,748,641
Accounts receivable from related entity 394,316
Contributions receivable, net 172.253

35,208,610

Investments, at fair value 13.419.355

48,627,965

Less: net assets with donor restrictions (5.978.7151

$42.649.250

To manage liquidity, Easter Seals NH maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalent balances to support
daily operations throughout the year. Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposits, money market
funds, and other similar vehicles that generate a return on cash and provide daily liquidity to Easter Seals
NH. The management of Easter Seals NH has implemented a practice to establish cash reserves on hand
that can be utilized at the discretion of management to help fund both operational needs and/or capital
projects. As of August 31, 2022, and 2021, approximately $10,200,000 and $10,177,000, respectively,
of cash and cash equivalents, and approximately $10,056,000 and $10,681,000, respectively, of
investments were on-hand under this practice. Because such funds are available and may be used in
current operations, they have been classified as current in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position.

5. Contributions Receivable

Contributions receivable from donors as of August 31, 2022 and 2021 are $197,962 and $236,642,
respectively, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $ 17,329 and $27,931, respectively. The long-
term portion of contributions receivable is recorded in other assets in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. Gross contributions are due as follows at August 31, 2022:

2023 $189,582
2024 3,380

2025 2,000
2026 2,000
2027 1.000

$197.962

23



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

6. Revenues

Revenue by Easter Seals NH's core programs included in fees and tuition and grants consisted of the
following:

Fees and

Tuition Grants Total

2022

Residential and educational services $33,336,907 $  478,631 $33,815,538
Community based services 2,529,116 21,853,895 24,383,011
Famum Center 5,912,587 3,175,028 9,087,615
Family support services 6,796,612 515,896 7,312,508
Senior services 4,332,135 1,567,091 5,899,226
Transportation services 3,649,934 21,928 3,671,862
Outpatient and early support services 1,030,926 1,787,197 2,818,123
Children development services 1,661,031 494,511 2,155,542
Workforce development 1,878,376 1,125 1,879,501
Other programs 786.996 1.734.848 2.521.844

Fees and

Tuition Grants Total

2021

Residential and educational services $28,646,886 $  982,152 $29,629,038
Community based services 2,190,706 20,537,778 22,728,484
Famum Center 9,104,776 3,875,518 12,980,294
Family support services 7,150,066 352,915 7,502,981
Senior services 3,831,492 2,018,562 5,850,054
Transportation services 2,999,166 36,563 3,035,729
Outpatient and early support services 1,037,854 1,580,370 2,618,224
Children development services 1,922,827 587,504 2,510,331
Workforce development 2,111,411 5,831 2,117,242
Other programs 1.025.577 3.119.181 4.144.758

S6Q.020.761

Revenues related to providing health services are recorded at the contracted rate for those that involved a
third-party payor and less any implicit price concession. Substantially all such adjustments in 2022 and
2021 are related to Famum Center. A breakdown of Famum Center's revenue reflected in fees and tuition

in 2022 and 2021 from major payor sources is as follows:

Private payors (includes coinsurance and deductibles)
Medicaid

Medicare

Self-pay
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2022

$1,633,018
4,279,742

14,237

24.668

$6-961-666

2021

$ 2,845,213
6,243,173

38,368

^21.978^



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDURIES
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6. Revenues (Continued)

In response to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, Easter Seals NH qualified for certain federal grant
funding through the Coronavirus Aid. Reliefand Economic Security Act (CARES Act) and CARES Act
Provider Relief Funding. As of August 31, 2022, and 2021, Easter Seals NH received approximately
$1,846,000 and $10,500,000, respectively, of which approximately $900,000 and $4,600,000,
respectively, was paid to employees either in the form of bonuses for retention and recruitment or
employees who qualified for the additional payments under certain programs. Easter Seals NH also
entered a Payroll Protection Program loan in 2021 which was forgiven on February 2,2022 (see note 1 1).

7. Leases

Qperatins

Easter Seals NH leases certain assets under various arrangements which have been classified as operating
leases. Total expense under all leases (including month-to-month leases) was approximately $1,200,000
and $1,145,000 for the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Some of these leases have
terms which include renewal options, and others may be terminated at Easter Seals NH's option without
substantial penalty. Future minimum payments required under the leases in effect at August 31, 2022,
through the remaining contractual term of the underlying lease agreements, are as follows:

2023 $1,077,760
2024 579,592

2025 381,288
2026 276,403
2027 231,914
Thereafter 28.269

Total $2.575.226

8. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following at August 31
2022 2021

Buildings $ 32,931,032 $ 34,233,240
Land and land improvements 3,930,144 4,565,183
Leasehold improvements 77,686 79,367

Office equipment and furniture 9,901,651 10,032,195
Vehicles 2,461,097 2,467,043
Construction in progress 439.135 678.379

\ 49,740,745 52,055,407
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization f22.524.502t f22.l55.606t

$ 27.216.243 $ 29.899.801
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8. Fixed Assets (Continued^

Depreciation and amortization expense related to fixed assets totaled $2,003,836 and $1,992,894 in 2022
and 2021, respectively.

Effective November 13, 2021, Famum Center no longer provided certain residential treatments at its
Franklin, New Hampshire location. On June 29,2022, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. was awarded a
grant agreement totaling $22,974,523 with the State ofNew Hampshire, Governor's Office of Emergency
Relief and Recovery. This grant will support the construction of a mixed housing, supportive services,
and retreat campus for veterans and their families located in Franklin, New Hampshire. Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc. is obligated to complete the project prior to December 31, 2026. No amounts of this
grant were utilized through August 31, 2022. Due to this agreement and the extensive nature of the
renovation, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. disposed of certain fixed assets associated with the
residential treatment center that was closed in November 2021 resulting in recognition of impairment of
fixed assets of approximately $1,882,000 in the accompanying 2022 consolidated statement of activities
and changes in net assets.

9. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, at fair value, are as follows at August 31:

2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents $ 252,648 $ 242,131
Marketable equity securities 1,744,099 2,239,468
Mutual funds 22,406,691 25,484,877
Corporate and foreign bonds 287,951 397,883
Government and agency securities 621.050 564.182

25,312,439 28,928,541
Less: assets limited as to use fl.837.4451 ("2.357.9391

Total investments, at fair value .$23.474.994 $26.570.602

The composition of assets limited as to use totaling $1,837,445 and $2,357,939 at August 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively, are investments under a deferred compensation plan (see note 10) at fair value.

10. Retirement Plans

Easter Seals NH maintains a Section 403(b) Plan (a defined contribution retirement plan), which covers
substantially all employees. Eligible employees may contribute any whole percentage of their annual
salary. Easter Seals NH makes a matching contribution for eligible employees equal to 100% of the
participants' elective deferrals limited to 3% of the participants' allowable compensation each pay period.
The combined amount of employer and employee contributions is subject by law to annual maximum
amounts. The employer match was approximately $645,000 and $816,000 for the years ended August 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively.
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10. Retirement Plans (Continued)

Easter Seals NH offers, to certain management personnel, the option to participate in an Internal Revenue
Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan to which the organization may make a discretionary
contribution. The employees' accounts are not available until termination, retirement, death or an
unforeseeable emergency. Easter Seals NH contributed approximately $101,210 and $84,000 to this plan
during the years ended August 31,2022 and 2021, respectively. The assets and liabilities associated with
this plan were $1,837,445 and $2,357,939 at August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and are included
within assets limited as to use and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position.

11. Borrowings

Borrowings consist of the following at August 31:

2022 2021

Revenue Bonds, Series 20I6A, tax exempt, issued through the New
Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA),
with an annual LIBOR-based variable rate equal to the sum of
(a) 0.6501 times one-month LIBOR, plus (b) 0.6501 times 2.45%
(3.14% at August 31, 2022), due in annual principal payments

increasing from $49,167 to $62,917 with a final payment of
$6,875,413 due in May 2027, secured by a pledge of all gross
revenues and negative pledge of cash, investments and real estate. $10,061,668 $10,643,336

Revenue Bonds, Series 20I6B, tax exempt, issued through NHHEFA,
with a fixed rate at 3.47%, annual principal payments continually
increasing from $17,430 to $21,180 with a final payment of
$4,521,598 due in May 2027, secured by a pledge of all gross
revenues and negative pledge of cash, investments and real estate. 5,655,563 5,897,177

Various notes payable to a bank with fixed interest rate of 2.24%,
various principal and interest payments ranging from $419 to $1,070
payable monthly through dates ranging from September 2021
through September 2025, secured by vehicles with a net book value
of $173,523 at August 31,2022. 174,119 256,662

Mortgage note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 3.25%. Principal
and interest of $12,200 payable monthly, due in February 2030,
secured by an interest in certain property with a net book value of
$2,691,921 at August 31, 2022. 1,995,428 2,074,653

Note payable to the City of Rochester, New Hampshire, payable in
annual payments of $16,408, including interest at 3.35% and net of
$7,290 of principal and interest loan funding grant, through July I,
2027, secured by an interest in certain property, paid off in June
2022 at no penalty. - 87,859

Payroll Protection Program loan, 1% interest, advance amount payable
in equal monthly payments of principal and interest commencing on
the first business day after the end of the deferment period (July 31,
2022), forgiven in February 2022. - 10,000,000
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11. Borrowings (Continued)

2022 2021

Note payable to NHHFA, 0% interest, repaid at the time of construction
loan closing on the project or the project being determined infeasible
by the Authority, in which case, the loan shall be forgiven, and no
repayment expected. Paid off in July 2022 alno penalty. $ - $ 45,000

Note payable to NHHFA, 0% interest, conditional repayment terms,

based off surplus cash availability, due October 2031, secured by an
interest in certain property with a net book value of $767,351 at
August 31,2022. 531,486 531,486

Note payable to NHHFA, 0% interest, conditional repayment terms,

based off surplus cash availability, due March 2040, secured by an
interest in certain property with a net book value of $529,443 at
August 31,2022. 492,448 492,448

Note payable to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire, 0% interest,
annual principal payable of $4,518 on October! each year for
10 years through October 2026 secured by an interest in certain
property with a net book value of $767,351 at August 31, 2022. 67.762 72.280

18,978,474 30,100,901

Less current portion (1,016,962) (1,222,914)
Less net unamortized bond issuance costs (100.5061 (106.6161

Principal payments on long-term debt for each of the following years ending August 31 are as follows:

2023 $ 1,016,962
2024 1,020,737
2025 1,032,876
2026 1,050,365
2027 1,139,574
Thereafter 13.717.960

SI 8.978.474

Lines ofCredit and Other Financing Arransements

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 revolving equipment line,
which can be used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use by Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc. on demand. Advances are converted to term notes as utilized. The interest rate charged
on outstanding borrowings is a fixed rate equal to the then Business Vehicle Rate at the time of the
advance for maturities up to a five-year term. Included in long-term debt are eight notes payable totaling
$174,119 and seventeen notes payable totaling $256,662 at August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively,
which originated under this agreement. Availability under this agreement at August 31, 2022 and 2021
is $325,881 and $243,338, respectively.
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11. Borrowings (Continued)

On August 31,2015, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. entered into a revolving line of credit with a bank.
On February 26, 2019, an amendment changed the borrowing availability from $4 million to $7 million
(a portion of which is secured by available letters of credit of $24,000). On July 16,2020, an amendment
changed the outstanding advances from due on demand to a firm maturity date of June 30, 2022 and the
interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was revised to be the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2.25%.
On June 29, 2022, an amendment changed the interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings to be the
one-month BSBY rate plus 2.25% (4.66% at August 31, 2022), and the maturity date was extended to
June 30, 2023. Under an event of default, the interest rate will increase from the one-month BSBY rate
plus 2.25% to the then applicable interest rate plus 5.00%. The line is secured by a first priority interest
in ail business assets of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. with guarantees from Easter Seals Vermont,
Inc. and Farnum Center. The agreement requires that collective borrowings under the line of credit be
reduced to $1,000,000 for 30 consecutive days during each calendar year. There were no amounts
outstanding under this revolving line of credit agreement at August 31, 2022 and 2021.

On July 16, 2020, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. entered into a revolving line of credit with a bank
with borrowing availability of up to $4 million. Outstanding advances were due upon the expiration date
on November 16, 2020, and the revolving line of credit was not renewed upon expiration.

NHHEFA 2016A and 20J6B Revenue Bonds

On December 20, 2016, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. issued $13,015,000 in Series 2016A Tax
Exempt Revenue Bonds. These bonds were used to refinance the Series 2004A Revenue Bonds.

Also, on December 20, 2016, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. issued $9,175,000 in Series 20I6B Tax
Exempt Revenue Bonds. The bonds were issued to refinance an existing mortgage and to obtain funds
for certain planned capital projects.

Mortsaee Notes Payable

On February 18, 2015, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Famum Center entered into a $2,480,000
mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition of certain property located in Franklin, New Hampshire.
The initial interest rate charged is fixed at 3.25%. Monthly principal and interest payments are $12,200,
and all remaining outstanding principal and interest is due on February 18, 2030. The note is secured by
the property.

Effective July 1, 2021, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has assumed responsibility of the agreement
that was made between The Way Home, Inc. (the Organization) and NHHFA dated October 11,2001 that
obtained federal funding through the HOME Investment Partnership Programs (see note 15). The funds
were used for improvements on 214 Spruce Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The interest rate
charged is fixed at 0.00%. As defined in accordance with the regulatory agreement that expires on
October 11, 2031, repayment of the balance is conditional based on if surplus cash available exceeds
25%, until the project is sold or refinanced, or upon expiration of the regulatory agreement. So long as
the Organization continues to comply with the terms of the loan to provide housing and related services
to low income, nearly homeless families, the Organization will not be required to repay this loan or any
interest. The note is secured by the property. No payments were made in 2022.
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11. Borrowings (Continued)

On August 31,2015, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. entered into a revolving line of credit with a bank.
On February 26, 2019, an amendment changed the borrowing availability from $4 million to $7 million
(a portion of which is secured by available letters of credit of $24,000). On July 16,2020, an amendment
changed the outstanding advances from due on demand to a firm maturity date of June 30, 2022 and the
interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was revised to be the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2.25%.
On June 29, 2022, an amendment changed the interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings to be the

one-month BSBY rate plus 2.25% (4.66% at August 31, 2022), and the maturity date was extended to
June 30, 2023. Under an event of default, the interest rate will increase from the one-month BSBY rate
plus 2.25% to the then applicable interest rate plus 5.00%. The line is secured by a first priority interest
in all business assets of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. with guarantees from Easter Seals Vermont,
Inc. and Farnum Center. The agreement requires that collective borrowings under the line of credit be
reduced to $1,000,000 for 30 consecutive days during each calendar year. There were no amounts
outstanding under this revolving line of credit agreement at August 31, 2022 and 2021.

On July 16, 2020, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. entered into a revolving line of credit with a bank
with borrowing availability of up to $4 million. Outstanding advances were due upon the expiration date
on November 16, 2020, and the revolving line of credit was not renewed upon expiration.

NHHEFA 2016A and 2016B Revenue Bonds

On December 20, 2016, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. issued $13,015,000 in Series 2016A Tax
Exempt Revenue Bonds. These bonds were used to refinance the Series 2004A Revenue Bonds.

Also, on December 20, 2016, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. issued $9,175,000 in Series 2016B Tax
Exempt Revenue Bonds. The bonds were issued to refinance an existing mortgage and to obtain funds
for certain planned capital projects.

Mortsaee Notes Payable

On February 18, 2015, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Famum Center entered into a $2,480,000
mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition of certain property located in Franklin, New Hampshire.
The initial interest rate charged is fixed at 3.25%. Monthly principal and interest payments are $12,200,
and all remaining outstanding principal and interest is due on February 18, 2030. The note is secured by
the property.

Effective July I, 2021, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has assumed responsibility of the agreement
that was made between The Way Home, Inc. (the Organization) and NHHFA dated October 11,2001 that
obtained federal funding through the HOME Investment Partnership Programs (see note 15). The funds
were used for improvements on 214 Spruce Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The interest rate
charged is fixed at 0.00%. As defined in accordance with the regulatory agreement that expires on
October 11, 2031, repayment of the balance is conditional based on if surplus cash available exceeds
25%, until the project is sold or refinanced, or upon expiration of the regulatory agreement. So long as
the Organization continues to comply with the terms of the loan to provide housing and related services
to low income, nearly homeless families, the Organization will not be required to repay this loan or any
interest. The note is secured by the property. No payments were made in 2022.

29



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDURIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

11. Borrowings (Continued)

Effective July I, 2021, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has assumed responsibility for the agreement
that was made between the Organization and NHHFA dated March 17, 2010. The funds were used for
the acquisition, construction and permanent financing on 224 Spruce Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire. The interest rate charged is fixed at 0.00%. As defined in accordance with the regulatory
agreement that expires on March 17, 2040, repayment of the balance is conditional based on if surplus
cash available exceeds 50%, until the project is sold or refinanced, or upon expiration of the regulatory
agreement. The note is secured by the property. No payments were made in 2022.

Notes Payable

Effective September 1, 2018, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has assumed responsibility for the
agreement that was made between The Homemakers Health Services, Inc. and the City of Rochester, New
Hampshire that obtained grants and other funding commitments to fund the costs associated with the
design and construction of an extension of the City of Rochester, New Hampshire's public sewer mains
to service the Organization's property in Rochester, New Hampshire. The costs associated with the
extension of the sewer main were $523,298, which was funded by grants of $181,925 and a promissory
note, payable to the City of Rochester, New Hampshire of $341,373. The promissory note bears interest
at 3.35% per annum. In addition, the City of Rochester, New Hampshire was approved for a loan funding
grant in the amount of $145,798, which consisted of the loan principal funding of $105,018 and the loan
interest funding of $40,780. A net principal promissory note payable of $236,355 was recorded with an
issue date of July I, 2017. This note payable was repaid in full in 2022.

On June 25,2020, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. entered into a $640,000 note payable with the State
of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System
Relief Fund (the Lender) to support critical services, costs of health care professionals and the purchase
of personal protective equipment and cleaning/sanitization supplies due to the COVID-19 pandemic. At
the Lender's discretion, this loan may be converted to a grant and forgiven. The Lender shall determine
by November 30, 2020 whether it believes that any part of the funds being loaned should not be repaid in
full. There is no interest paid to this note. In November 2020, a notification was received from the Lender
that the full note amount was converted to a grant and forgiven.

On June 25,2020, Famum Center entered into a $500,000 note payable with the State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund (the
Lender) to support critical services, costs of health care professionals and the purchase of personal
protective equipment and cleaning/sanitization supplies due to the COVID-19 pandemic. At the Lender's
discretion, this note may be converted to a grant and forgiven. The Lender shall determine by
November 30, 2020 whether it believes that any part of the funds being loaned should not be repaid in
full. There is no interest paid to this note. In October 2020, a notification was received from the Lender
that the full note amount was converted to a grant and forgiven.

On October 14, 2020, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. entered into agreement with NHHFA for a
technical assistance loan in an amount not to exceed $45,000 for the Rochester Supportive Housing
Project (the project). The interest rate charged is fixed at 0.00%, and the loan shall be repaid at the time
of construction loan closing on the project whether the project was financed with NHHFA funds or
another funding source. Should the project not proceed to a closing, whether financed through NHHFA
or another funding source, and the project be determined infeasible by NHHFA, then the loan shall be
forgiven, and no repayment expected. In July 2022, this loan was been paid off by Easter Seals NH.
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11. Borrowings (Continued)

Effective July I, 2021, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has assumed responsibility for the agreement
dated July I, 2016 that was made between the Organization and the City of Manchester through the
Community Improvement Program. The funds were used for facility upgrades on 214 Spruce Street in
Manchester, New Hampshire. The interest rate charged is fixed at 0.00%. Annual principal payments of
$4,518 commencing October 1,2017 can be forgiven through October 1,2026 so long as the Organization
can demonstrate the agreed-upon objectives have been achieved. On August 23, 2018, an amendment

changed that the annual principal payments will be deferred from October 1,2017 and resume October I,
2022. The note is secured by the property.

Payroll Protection Program Loan

On April 16, 2021, Easter Seals NH entered into a promissory note for an unsecured loan in the amount
of $10,000,000 through the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) established by the CARES Act and
administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA). The PPP provides loans to qualifying
businesses for amounts up to 2.5 times the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business.
The loan and accrued interest had original terms that were forgivable after the covered period as long as
the borrower used the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent, and utilities,
and maintains its payroll levels. The amount of loan forgiveness would be reduced if the borrower
terminated employees or reduced salaries during the period. The PPP loan was made for the purpose of
securing funding for salaries and wages of employees that may have otherwise been displaced by the
outbreak of C0VID-I9 and the resulting detrimental impact on Easter Seals NH's business. Any
unforgiven portion of the PPP loan bears interest at 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first ten
months. Beginning February 16, 2022, principal and interest payments for any unforgiven portion of the
PPP loan will be due monthly through April 16,2026. The PPP loan may be prepaid at any time without
penalty. Easter Seals NH accounted for the PPP loan in accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 470 and
included the full $10,000,000 within debt in the August 31, 2021 consolidated statement of financial
position. In February 2022, Easter Seals NH received approval for full forgiveness from the SBA. Upon
receiving forgiveness during the year ended August 31, 2022, Easter Seals NH recognized a gain on
extinguishment of long-term debt in the accompanying 2022 consolidated statement of activities and
changes in net assets.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with the
Series 2004A NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. On December 1, 2016, an amendment to this agreement was
executed in anticipation of the refinancing of the 2004A revenue bonds to change the interest rate charged
from 3.54% to 3.62% and the floating rate from LIBOR times 0.67 to LIBOR times 0.6501. The swap
agreement had an outstanding notional amount of $10,061,668 and $10,643,336 at August 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively, which reduces in conjunction with principal reductions until the agreement is
terminated in November 2034.

31



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2022 and 2021

11. Borrowings (Continued)

Effective July I, 2021, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has assumed responsibility for the agreement
dated July I, 2016 that was made between the Organization and the City of Manchester through the
Community Improvement Program. The funds were used for facility upgrades on 214 Spruce Street in
Manchester, New Hampshire. The interest rate charged is fixed at 0.00%. Annual principal payments of
$4,518 commencing October 1,2017 can be forgiven through October 1,2026 so long as the Organization
can demonstrate the agreed-upon objectives have been achieved. On August 23, 2018, an amendment

changed that the annual principal payments will be deferred from October 1,2017 and resume October I,
2022. The note is secured by the property.

Payroll Protection Program Loan

On April 16, 2021, Easter Seals NH entered into a promissory note for an unsecured loan in the amount
of $10,000,000 through the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) established by the CARES Act and
administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA). The PPP provides loans to qualifying
businesses for amounts up to 2.5 times the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business.
The loan and accrued interest had original terms that were forgivable after the covered period as long as
the borrower used the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent, and utilities,
and maintains its payroll levels. The amount of loan forgiveness would be reduced if the borrower
terminated employees or reduced salaries during the period. The PPP loan was made for the purpose of
securing funding for salaries and wages of employees that may have otherwise been displaced by the
outbreak of COVID-19 and the resulting detrimental impact on Easter Seals NH's business. Any
unforgiven portion of the PPP loan bears interest at 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first ten
months. Beginning February 16,2022, principal and interest payments for any unforgiven portion of the
PPP loan will be due monthly through April 16, 2026. The PPP loan may be prepaid at any time without
penalty. Easter Seals NH accounted for the PPP loan in accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 470 and
included the full $10,000,000 within debt in the August 31, 2021 consolidated statement of financial
position. In February 2022, Easter Seals NH received approval for full forgiveness from the SBA. Upon
receiving forgiveness during the year ended August 31, 2022, Easter Seals NH recognized a gain on
extinguishment of long-term debt in the accompanying 2022 consolidated statement of activities and
changes in net assets.

Interest Rate Swap Asreement

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has an interest rale swap agreement with a bank in connection with the
Series 2004A NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. On December I, 2016, an amendment to this agreement was
executed in anticipation of the refinancing of the 2004A revenue bonds to change the interest rate charged
from 3.54% to 3.62% and the floating rate from LIBOR times 0.67 to LIBOR times 0.6501. The swap
agreement had an outstanding notional amount of $10,061,668 and $10,643,336 at August 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively, which reduces in conjunction with principal reductions until the agreement is
terminated in November 2034.
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11. Borrowings (Continued)

The fair value of the above interest rate swap agreement totaled $995,184 and $2,238,251 at August 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively, $579,174 and $387,067 of which was current at August 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. During the years ended August 31,2022 and 2021, net payments required by the agreement
totaled $338,761 and $391,075, respectively. These payments have been included in interest expense
within the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. See note 14
with respect to fair value determinations.

Debt Covenants

In connection with the bonds, lines of credit and various other notes payable described above, Easter Seals
NH is required to comply with certain financial covenants including, but not limited to, minimum liquidity
and debt service coverage ratios. At August 31,2022, Easter Seals NH was in compliance with restrictive
covenants specified under the NHHEFA bonds and other debt obligations.

12. Donated Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time in connection with Easter Seals NH's program services
and fundraising campaigns. However, no amounts have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for such donated services, as no objective basis is available to measure the value.

13. Related Party Transactions

Easter Seals NH is a member of Easter Seals, Inc. Membership fees to Easter Seals, Inc. were $130,276
and $105,185 for the years ended August 31,2022 and 2021, respectively, and are reflected as support of
National programs on the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets.

14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at their measurement date. In
determining fair value, Easter Seals NH uses various methods including market, income and cost
approaches, and utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in factors used in the valuation. These
factors may be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. Easter Seals NH
utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable factors and minimizes the use of
unobservable factors.
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14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Certain of Easter Seals NH's financial instruments are reported at fair value, which include beneficial
interest held in trust, investments and the interest rate swap, and are classified by levels that rank the
quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair value:

Level I - Valuations for financial instruments traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market
transactions involving identical instruments.

Level 2 - Valuations for financial instruments traded in less active dealer or broker markets.

Valuations are obtained from third-party pricing services for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 - Valuations for financial instruments derived from other methodologies, including option
pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market
exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions
and projections in determining fair value.

The following describes the valuation methodologies used to measure financial assets and liabilities at
fair value. The levels relate to valuation only and do not necessarily indicate a measure of investment
risk. There have been no changes in the methodologies used by Easter Seals NH at August 31, 2022 and
2021.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Cash and cash equivalents are deemed to be Level I. The fair values of marketable equity securities and
mutual funds that are based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets are reflected as
Level I. Investments in certain government and agency securities and corporate and foreign bonds where
securities are transparent and generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by the
investment managers and reflected as Level 2.

Beneficial Interest in Trust Held bv Others

The beneficial interest in trust held by others has been assigned fair value levels based on the fair value
levels of the underlying investments within the trust. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds are based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and
are reflected as Level I. Investments in marketable equity securities and mutual funds where securities
are transparent and generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by the investment
managers and reflected as Level 2.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

The fair value for the interest rate swap liability is included in Level 3 and is estimated by the counterparty
using industry standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and discount the future
amounts to present value using market-based observable inputs, including interest rates.
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14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

At August 31,2022 and 2021, Easter Seals NH's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis were classified as follows:

2022

Assets:

Assets limited as to use and investments

at fair value:

Level Level 2 Level 3

Government and agency securities

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:
Money market funds

Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap

Mutual funds:

Domestic, fixed income

S24.4Q3.438

621.050

1,568

96,378

Total

Cash and cash equivalents $  252,648 $ - $ $  252,648
Marketable equity securities:

Large-cap 1,284,778 1,284,778
International 459,321 459,321

Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income 11,649,947 11,649,947
Intermediate-term bond fund 3,547,536 3,547,536
High yield bond fund 74,590 74,590
Foreign bond 19,577 19,577
Government securities 160,713 160,713
Emerging markets bond 376,551 376,551
International equities 1,290,322 1,290,322
Domestic, large-cap 1,058,579 1,058,579
Domestic, small-cap 118,360 118,360
Domestic, multi alt 300,029 300,029
Real estate fund 178,165 178,165

Mutual funds, closed-ended:

Domestic, large-cap 2,794,158 2,794,158
Domestic, mid-cap 481,343 481,343
Domestic, small-cap 356,821 356,821

Corporate and foreign bonds 287,951 287,951

32.651

621.050

S25.312.439

$  1,568

96,378

32.651

Liabilities:

Interest rate swap agreement S 99.5.184 $ 995.184
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Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total

2021

Assets:

Assets limited as to use and investments

at fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 242,131 $ $ - $  242,131

Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap 1,598,724 -

- 1,598,724

International 640,743 - - 640,743
Mutual funds, open-ended:

Short-term fixed income 12,415,237 — — 12,415,237

Intermediate-term bond fund 3,051,709 — — 3,051,709
High yield bond fund 86,611 - - 86,611

Foreign bond 22,597 - - 22,597

Government securities 165,842 -
- 165,842

Emerging markets bond 215,384 - - 215,384

International equities 1,559,537 - - 1,559,537

Domestic, large-cap 1,549,560 - - 1,549,560
Domestic, small-cap 61,390 - - 61,390
Domestic, multl alt 819,941 — — 819,941

Real estate fund 220,075 — — 220,075
Mutual funds, closed-ended:

Domestic, large-cap 4,164,781 -
- 4,164,781

Domestic, mid-cap 465,969 - - 465,969

Domestic, small-cap 686,244 - - 686,244

Corporate and foreign bonds - 397,883 - 397,883

Government and agency securities _ 564.183 _ 564.183

% 962.066 $ $28 928 541

Beneficial interest In trust held by others:
Money market funds $ 2,240 $ $ - $  2,240
Marketable equity securities:

Large-cap 88,345 - - 88,345

Mutual funds:

Domestic, fixed income — 28.734 _ 28.734

$. 90.585 $  28.734 $ $  1 19.319

Liabilities:

Interest rate swap agreement $, - $ $2,238,251 $ 2.238.251
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The table below sets forth a summary of changes In the fair value of Easter Seals NH's Level 3 liabilities
for the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021:

Interest

Rate Swan

Ending balance, August 31,2020 $(2,897,074)

Change in fair value 658.823

Ending balance, August 31,2021 (2,238,251)

Change in fair value 1.243.067

Ending balance, August 31, 2022 $  r995.184^

Acaulsition of The Wav Home

On October 28, 2020, Easter Seals NH began providing financial and operational management to The
Way Home (the Organization). On July 1, 2021, Easter Seals NH acquired the Organization for no
consideration. This affiliation was accounted for in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles guidance on acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity. Upon affiliation, the Organization became
a program of Easter Seals NH. The financial position of the Organization, recorded at fair value upon
affiliation as of July 1,2021, was as follows:

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Program and other accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets

Fixed assets

$  257,622
107,791

253,631

11,319

252,995

1.307.228

Total assets 2,190,586

Liabilities:

Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Other liabilities

Long-term debt

(28,577)
(26,307)

(336,916)
0.096.2141

Total liabilities n.488.0141

Contribution of net assets from acquisition
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16. Champlin Place Limited Partnership

Champlin Place Limited Partnership (the Partnership) was formed in June 2022 as a limited partnership
under the laws of the State of New Hampshire. The Partnership's purpose is to acquire, own, develop,
construct and/or rehabilitate, lease, manage, and operate an apartment complex to be constructed and
located at 215 Rochester Hill Road, Rochester, New Hampshire, comprised of 65 residential apartments
benefiting low to moderate-income households (the Project). The Partnership's equity was contributed
by its General Partner, Champlin Place, Inc., of which Easter Seals NH is the sole owner, and Housing
New England Fund IV, a limited partner and unrelated party. The Partnership agreement provides for the
allocation of profits and losses to the partners, proportionate to the equity contributed, as follows:

General Partner, Champlin Place, Inc. (wholly-owned by Easter Seals NH) 0.01%
Limited Partner, Housing New England Fund IV (an unrelated party) 99.99%

Capital Contributions

Easter Seals NH, as the sole owner of the General Partner, Champlin Place, Inc., has made its required
capital contribution of $ 1,742 as of August 31,2022, which is recorded as investment in related entity in
the accompanying 2022 consolidated statement of financial position. Champlin Place, Inc. is obligated
to make additional capital contributions in the amount of $155,078, which amounts are expected to be
funded in October 2023.

Deferred Developer Fee

On June 30, 2022, Easter Seals NH entered into a Development Services Agreement for the Project, in
which Easter Seals NH will earn up to $2,272,940 as a development fee for its services in connection with
the construction and development of the Project. Under the Development Services Agreement, $250,000
was earned and recognized as other revenue by Easter Seals NH in the 2022 consolidated statement of
activities and changes in net assets. The balance of the development fee will be earned on the date that
the construction and development of the Project is substantially complete, and all dwelling units have
been completed and are placed in service, with all balances to be paid prior to December 31, 2036.

Ground Lease

On June 30, 2022, Easter Seals NH entered into a ground lease with the Partnership for the land located
at 215 Rochester Hill Road, Rochester, New Hampshire, with terms of 98 years from the date of
execution. The Partnership will be required to pay Easter Seals NH base rent of $37,004 per annum,
commencing on January 1,2023, and continuing on each one-year anniversary date of the lease, payable
from available cash flow, as defined in the agreement. If available cash flow is insufficient to pay the full
amount of the base rent for any year, the unpaid portion will accrue interest at 3.43% per annum and be
payable on a cumulative basis in the first year in which there is sufficient available cash flow or capital
proceeds.

37



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

16. Champlin Place Limited Partnership (Continued)

Community Development Block Grant Loan and Asreements

In 2022, the City of Rochester, New Hampshire was awarded a Community Development Block Grant
by the Community Development Finance Authority. In turn, the City of Rochester, New Hampshire has
granted a conditional grant of $975,000 to Easter Seals NH, which in turn will loan the funds to the
Partnership to pay for site work improvements and certain construction costs of the Project through a
leasehold mortgage that was executed on June 30, 2022 between Easter Seals NH and the Partnership.
The loan accrues no interest, and is payable to Easter Seals NH in one lump sum 30 years from the date
of the note (July 2052). In the event of default of this condition, Easter Seals NH has the right to recover
all of the CDBG funds expended on the Project on behalf of the New Hampshire Community
Development Loan Fund. The amount of CDBG funds subject to recovery may decrease over the twenty-
year period at a rate negotiated between the City of Rochester and Easter Seals NH and approved by the
Community Development Finance Authority. Also as defined in the leasehold mortgage, if the
Partnership performs its obligations as defined in the agreement, then repayment of the leasehold
mortgage will become void, therefore requiring no repayment by the Partnership to Easter Seals NH.
Because of that provision, in 2023 Easter Seals NH will recognize offsetting assets and liabilities related
to the $975,000 in funding received from the City of Rochester, New Hampshire and subsequent loan to
the Partnership when cash flow associated with the grant and leasehold mortgage is expected.

Sponsor Loan and Terms

On June 30, 2022, in order to provide additional funding to the Partnership for upcoming site work and
construction costs, Easter Seals NH entered into a $563,607 loan agreement with the Partnership. This
loan bears interest at the rate of 0% and, at August 31, 2022, no amounts had been drawn on the loan by
the Partnership. If not paid earlier, all outstanding principal and interest accrued must be repaid to Easter
Seals NH on June 30, 2052. Payments of principal and interest are to be made to the extent of available
cash flow, as defined in the agreement. If repayment is not made within thirty days of the maturity date,
or if any payment due is not paid within thirty days of the due date, then interest will be payable on any
unpaid sum at the rate of 12% per annum, compounded annually, until such amount is paid, or another
means of payment is arranged.

Reimbursement Agreements

On June 30, 2022, Easter Seals NH entered into a Reimbursement Agreement with the Partnership to
reimburse Easter Seals NH for all predevelopment expenses incurred by the Project that were paid by
Easter Seals NH. The Partnership acknowledged and agreed that the Partnership is solely responsible to
pay all project expenses not later than the date of the closing of the Partnership's construction loan for
the Project, which was July 13, 2022. As of August 31, 2022, Easter Seals NH was owed $394,316 by
the Partnership, which amount is recorded within accounts receivable from related entity in the
accompanying 2022 consolidated statement of financial position.

38



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

16. Champlin Place Limited Partnership (Continued)

Further, Easter Seals NH will be paid certain amounts under a Partnership Administration Agreement,
dated as of June 30, 2022 between Easter Seals NH and the Partnership, whereby Easter Seals NH will
provide various administrative services in exchange for fees of $4,875 per year beginning in 2023,
increasing 3% annually beginning January 1,2024.

Rieht ofRefusal and Option Asreement

Through a Right of Refusal and Option Agreement dated June 30,2022, the Partnership granted to Easter
Seals NH certain rights of first refusal and options to purchase the Project, which, if elected, would include
the 99.99% interest in the Project held by Housing New England Fund IV. As a result, Easter Seals NH
has been granted an irrevocable, successive, and exclusive right of refusal to purchase the Project. Such
right is exercisable for a period of 24-months beginning upon expiration of an initial 15-year compliance
period, and continuing until the Partnership otherwise sells the Project.

Through a Right of Refusal and Opinion Agreement dated June 30,2022, Housing New England Fund IV
has the option to give written notice to Champlin Place, Inc. at any time following the end of the Credit
Period, as defined, to require Champlin Place, Inc. to purchase the interest of Housing New England
Fund IV for a price equal to the sum of: (i) $100, (ii) the amount of any federal, state or local tax liability
required to be paid (including, without limitation, any real estate transfer or franchise taxes), (lii)any
costs Incurred by Housing New England Fund IV in connection with the transfer of its interest, and (iv) all
amounts then due and owing to Housing New England Fund IV or its affiliates under the agreement.
Upon receipt of such written notice of the put option, Champlin Place, Inc. shall purchase such interest
and make all payments required within 30 days. At the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the put option was not eligible to be exercised by Housing New England Fund IV, and it is expected that
the Credit Period will extend through December 31,2034.

Guaranty Aereement

On June 30, 2022, Easter Seals NH unconditionally guaranteed due payment, performance, and
fulfillment of certain obligations of the Partnership and Housing New England Fund IV. Easter Seals
NH's liability is generally limited and shall not exceed $402,000 in the aggregate, and the guaranty
terminates upon the later of the 60* month anniversary of the stabilization date, as defined, and the date
that the Partnership has achieved stabilized occupancy for five consecutive calendar years. However,
should an operating deficit arise before the latest of permanent mortgage commencement or cost
certification, as defined in the agreement, or the date the Project achieves 100% occupancy, then Easter

Seals NH's obligation to advance funds to pay operating deficits shall be unlimited. At the date of these
consolidated financial statements, no events or conditions have occurred that would trigger Easter Seals
NH's performance under the guaranty agreement.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2022

ASSETS

New Famum Elimin

Hampshire* Center Vermont Maine ations Total

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $14,819,630 $  520 $  17,611 $ - $ $14,837,761
Restricted cash 79,819 — — — _ 79,819
Short-term investments, at fair value 10,055,639 — _ 10,055,639
Accounts receivable from affiliates — 9,187,000 573,894 — (9,760,894)
Accounts receivable from related entity 394,316 — —

— — 394,316
Program and other accounts receivable 8,063,145 941,833 743,663 9,748,641
Contributions receivable, net 171,994 259 _ _ 172,253
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 892.299 2.070 13-540 907.909

Total current assets 34,476,842 10,131,682 1,348,708 - (9,760,894) 36,196,338

Assets limited as to use 1,834,925 2,520 - - - 1,837,445

Investments, at fair value 12,622,311 797,044 -
- - 13,419,355

Investment in related entity 1,742 -
- - - 1,742

Other assets 349,154 - - - - 349,154

Fixed assets, net 18.914.210 8.214.080 87.953 _

27.216.243

$19,145,326 $1,436,661 $r9.760.894> $79,020,277
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

New Famum Elimin

Hampshire* Center Vermont Maine ations Total
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 2,538,018 $ $ _ $ $ 2,538,018
Accrued expenses 6,381,470 69,089 —

_ 6,450,559
Accounts payable to affiliates 9,760,894 — — — (9,760,894)
Deferred revenue 4,055,463 527,793 15,389 — 4,598,645
Current portion of interest rate swap agreement 579,174 — — — _ 579,174
Current portion of long-term debt 901.994 114.968 _ __ 1.016.962

Total current liabilities 24,217,013 711,850 15,389 - (9,760,894) 15,183,358

Other liabilities 2,127,802 2,520 _ 2,130,322
Interest rate swap agreement, less current portion 416,010 — — _ 416,010
Long-term debt, less current portion, net 11.817.107 6.043.899 _ 17.861.006

Total liabilities 38,577,932 6,758,269 15,389 - (9,760,894) 35,590,696

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions 24,296,543 11,786,295 1,368,028 —
_ 37,450,866

With donor restrictions 5.324.709 600.762 53.244 -
- 5.978.715

Total net assets 29.621.252

$68.199.1fi4

12.387.057 1.421.272

$ -

43.429.581

Includes Champlin Place, Inc.
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August 31, 2021

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Short-term investments, at fair value
Accounts receivable from affiliates

Program and other accounts receivable
Contributions receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use

Investments, at fair value

Other assets

Fixed assets, net

New Famum Elimin
Hamnshire Center Vermont Maine ations Total

$14,362,485 $  680 $  21,041 $  4,807 $ $14,389,013
82,461 - -

—
_ 82,461

10,681,421 - - —
— 10,681,421

- 8,293,852 564,017 — (8,857,869)
6,754,763 942,023 819,392 77,160 — 8,593,338
219,930 2,749 2,186 —

_ 224,865
600.915 12.252 12.684 7.851 633.702

32,701,975 9,251,556 1,419,320 89,818 (8,857,869) 34,604,800

2,357,939 -
- - - 2,357,939

14,916,185 962,256 - 10,740 - 15,889,181

378,877 - -
- - 378,877

19.285.292 10.536.119 74.328 4.062 29.899.801

$69,640,268 $1^645 $  104.620 ,$83,130,598
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable to affiliates
Deferred revenue

Current portion of interest rate swap agreement
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Other liabilities

Interest rate swap agreement, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion, net

Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets (deficit)

New Famum

Hampshire Center

$2,311,091 $
6,596,298 298,467
4,872,222

990,620 851,279
387,067

L030.748 192.166

16,188,046 1,341,947

2,682,812

1,851,184

22.615.261

43,337,303

20,884,644

5.418.321

26.302.965

$69.640.268

Vermont

35 $ 553

20

6.156.110

7,498,057

12,641,512

610.362

1,401,174

86.109

Maine

Elimin

ations

5,792

872 $

350

3,985,647

14,892

(8,857,869)

Total

$ 2,312,551
6,895,135

1,862,583

387,067

1.222.914

6,365 4,001,761 (8,857,869) 12,680,250

-  - - 2,682,812
-  - - 1,851,184

^  ̂ ^ 28.771.371

6,365 4,001,761 (8,857,869) 45,985,617

(3,900,866)
3.725

13.251.874 1.487.283 r3.897.14n

31,026,464

6.118.517

37.144.981

$83.130.598
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2022

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions, net

Special events, net
Annual campaigns, net
Bequests

Total public support

Revenue:

Fees and tuition

Grants

Gain on extinguishment of debt
Dividend and interest income

Rental income

Intercompany revenue
Other

Total revenue

Total public support and revenue

Operating expenses:
Program services:

Public health education

Professional education

Direct services

Total program services

New

Hampshire*

Famum

Center Vermont

$ 1,014,261 $ 87,404 $ 28,492 $
1,951,633

242,613

4.160

3,212,667

49,164,160

27,738,493

5,531,044

814,161

31,762

1,860,214

391.445

85.531.279

88,743,946

29,142

1,555

118,101

5,951,665

3,175,912

3,595,084

32,880

390

(327)
4,404

32,569

6,796,612

571,852

51,164

2.817

12.755.931 7.422.445

12,874,032 7,455,014

26,267

160,997

67.751.508 10.563.928 6.752.825

67,938,772 10,563,928 6,752,825

Maine

3,570 $

(5,129)
454

Elimin-

ations

(1,105)

65,805

143,893

72,708

116

282.522

281,417

264.512

264,512

(63,622)

(1,860,214)

f 1.923.8361

(1,923,836)

(85.1321

Total

1,133,727

1,975,319

249,026

4.160

3,362,232

61,914,620

31,630,150

9,250,000

847,157

31,762

394.652

104.068.341

107,430,573

26,267

160,997

85.247.641

(85,132) 85,434,905
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Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

New

Hamoshire*

$ 9,484,776
2.053.912

Famum

Center

$ 1,105,551
24.250

Vermont

$ 710,875
51.860

Maine

$  30,713
24.577

Elimin

ations

$(1,838,704)

Total

$ 9,493,211

2.154.599

Total supporting services 11.538.688 1.129.801 762.735 55.290 ri.838.7041 11.647.810

Total functional expenses 79,477,460 11,693,727 7,515,560 319,802 (1,923,836) 97,082,715

Support of National programs 130.276 _

130.276

Total operating expenses 79.607.736 1 1.693.729 7.515.560 319.802 f 1.923.8361 97.212.991

Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations 9,136,210 1,180,303 (60,546) (38,385) - 10,217,582

Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net unrealized and realized losses on investments, net
Increase in fair value of beneficial interest in trust held by others
Loss on sales, disposal and impairment of fixed assets

1,243,067

(3,081,646)
11,278

(•55.7711

(163,551)

(-1.881.5691 f2.6041

(1,035)

n.l5!1

-

1,243,067

(3,246,232)
11,278

(-1.941.09.51

ri.883.0721 f2.045.1201 f2.6041 f2.1861 n.932.9821

Total increase (decrease) in net assets before effects of dissolution
of affiliate 7,253,138 (864,817) (63,150) (40.571) . 6,284,600

Dissolution of an affiliate f3.934.85n _ f2.86l1 3.937.712

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 3,318,287 (864,817) (66,011) 3,897,141 - 6,284,600

Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year 26.302.965 13.251.874 1.487.283 r3,897.I411 37.144.981

Net assets at end of year S29.621.252 S12.387.0.57 S 1.421.272 S .$43,429,581

*  Includes Champlin Place, Inc.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2021

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions, net

Special events, net
Annual campaigns, net

Bequests

Total public support

Revenue:

Fees and tuition

Grants

Dividend and interest income

Rental income

Intercompany revenue
Other

Total revenue

Total public support and revenue

Operating expenses:
Program services:

Public health education

Professional education

Direct services

Total program services

New

Hampshire

$  876,642
1,216,723

436,622

4.091

2,534,078

43,397,874

28,138,237

607,365

29,775

2,171,005
538.083

74.882.339

77,416,417

Famum

Center

55,736

40,522

6,079

102,337

9,104,776

3,877,583

26,794

13.009.153

13,111,490

40,035

3,192

62.168.239 12.591.072

62,211,466 12,591,072

Vermont

47,117

91,639

12,125

150,881

7,150,066

622,212

1

11.412

7.783.691

7,934,572

1,212

7.058.225

7,059,437

Maine

81,165

31,092

1,463

113,720

438,916

458,342

240

5i

897.549

1,011,269

1,211

861.379

862,590

Elimin

ations Total

$ 1,060,660
1,379,976

456,289

4.091

2,901,016

(70,871) 60,020,761
33,096,374

634,400

29,775
(2,171,005)

549.546

(2.241.876^ 94.330.856

(2,241,876) 97,231,872

42,458

3,192

(82.939^ 82.595.976

(82,939) 82,641,626
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Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses

Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations

Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net unrealized and realized gains on investments, net
Decrease in fair value of beneficial interest in trust held by others
Loss on sales and disposals of fixed assets
Contribution of net assets from acquisition

Total increase (decrease) in net assets

Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year

Net assets (deficit) at end of year

New

Hamoshire

Famum

Center Vermont Maine

Elimin

ations Total

$ 9,414,586
1.084.072

$ 1,330,879
18.207

$ 755,146
73.153

$  85,846
74.124

$(2,158,937) $ 9,427,520
1.249.556

10.498.658 1.349.086 828.299 159.970 (2.158.9373 10.677.076

72,710,124 13,940,158 7,887,736 1,022,560 (2,241,876) 93,318,702

105.185 _ _

105.185

72.81.5.309 13.940.1.58 7.887.736 1.022.560 (2.241.8763 93.423.887

4,601,108 (828,668) 46,836 (11.291) - 3,807,985

658,823

1,919,950

(696)

(35,216)
702.572

110,636

(5,742)

- 1,964

— 658,823

2,032,550
(696)

(40,958)

702.572

3.245.433 104.894 1.964 3.352.291

7,846,541 (723,774) 46,836 (9,327) - 7,160,276

18.456.424 13.975.648 1.440.447 r3.887.8141 29.984.705

S26.302.965 S13 251 874 £1.487.283 ,n..)7i4n $ £37.144.981
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended August 31,2022

New Famum Elimin-

Salaries and related expenses
Professional fees

Supplies
Telephone
Postage and shipping
Occupancy
Outside printing, artwork and media
Travel

Conventions and meetings
Specific assistance to individuals
Dues and subscriptions
Minor equipment purchases and equipment rentals
Ads, fees and miscellaneous

Interest

Depreciation and amortization

Hamoshire* Center Vermont Maine ations Total

$59,016,148 $ 7,909,493 $6,054,385 $  164,839 $ $73,144,865
9,956,300 1,828,032 772,153 47,970 (1,838,704) 10,765,751
1,402,773 435,168 29,343 507 — 1,867,791
555,548 95,972 74,650 6,333 _ 732,503
44,949 1,615 14,919 — 61,483

2,055,257 522,398 293,049 14,515 _ 2,885,219
47,301 - 399 -

— 47,700
1,419,777 35,458 143,244 2,657 (46,054) 1,555,082
116,866 44,568 3,625 15 — 165,074

1,681,563 12,718 50,891 80,759 (39,078) 1,786,853
31,475 (2,275) 135 -

— 29,335
228,853 18,230 3,334 1,255 _ 251,672
885,403 78,016 41,875 104 _ 1,005,398
562,621 217,532 - — — 780,153

1.472.626 496.804 33.558 848 _ 2.003.836

$79,477,460 $11,693,729 $7,515,560 $ 319.802 $fi.92.3 8361

Includes Champlin Place, Inc.
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2023 Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Board of Directors

Chairman

Andrew MacWilliam

Partner

Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP
101 Seaport Blvd.
Boston MA 02210

Tel: 603-490-6964

andrew.macwilliamfg)pwc.cQm
9/2009-12/2024

Past Chairman

Matthew Boucher

President

Airmar Technology Corp.
35 Meadowbrook Drive

Milford NH 03055

Tel: 603-249-7105

mboucher@airmar.com

9/2012-12/2024

Chair Elect & Treasurer

Bryan Bouchard
CMA & Assistant Professor

Southern NH University
92 Riverwalk Way
Manchester NH 03101

Tel: 603-661-3560

3/2015-12/2024

Vice Chairman

Tom Sullivan

President. Sullivan Construction, Inc.
258 S. River Rd.

Bedford NH 03110

Tel: 603-647-1777

tsullivan(g)sullivanconstructlQn.cQm
5/2009-12/2024

Assistant Treasurer

Paul E. Voegelin, COO
Sheehan Phinney Bass + Green
1000 Elm St., PO Box 3701

Manchester NH 03105-3701

Tel: 603-627-8210

pvoegelinr^sheehan.com
9/2018-11/2021 (FC)
12/2020-12/2023

Secretary
Mary Flowers
President

Flowers Communication

9 Maple Road
North Hampton NH 03862
Tel: 603-379-2788

Cell: 479-586-0990

Marv.M.Flowers@Qmail.com

12/2017-12/2023

Trevor Arp
Senior VP, Comcast

15 Niblick Lane

Greenland NH 03840

Tel: 617-279-1071

trevor arpfg)comcast.com

2/2021-12/2023

Gregory Baxter, MD
President, Elliot Health System
One Elliot Way
Manchester NH 03103

Tel: 603-663-2402

gbaxter@elliot-hs.orq
2/2020-12/2023

Rick Courtemanche

IBM (Ret)
254B Towie Farm Road

Hampton NH 03842
Tel: 603-557-7600

racourtfgcomcast.net

11/2013-12/2025

Eddie Edwards

Assistant Commissioner of the

Department of Safety
25 Clearwater Drive

Dover, NH 03820

Tel: 603-923-7655

Eddie.Edwards^DOS.NH.GOV
2/2021-12/2023

Charles S. Goodwin

Cogswell Benevolent Trust
951 Straw Hill Road

Manchester NH 03104

Tel: 603-622-2323

csGoodwinI 3fg)qmail.com
11/2005-12/2023

Liz (Elizabeth) Hitchcock
Partner

Orbit Group
848 Elm Street, Suite 200

Manchester, NH 03101

Tel: 603-828-5868

lizf^orbitaroup.com
4/2021-12/2023

William Lambrukos

Sr. VP Operations

Northeast Delta Dental

One Delta Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Tel: 603-223-1342

wlambrukos@nedelta.com

4/2019-12/2025

Lucy Lange
General Manager
Manchester Radio Group
50 Commercial Street

Manchester, NH, 03101

Tel: 603-497-7718

llanae@manchesterrG.com

12/2018-12/2024

Tracey Pelton
Exec Dir, Business Dev & Mktg
PROCON LLC

1359 Hooksett Road

Hooksett NH 03106

Tel: 603-518-2203

tDelton@Droconinc.com

1/2018-12/2023

Richard Rawlings
Northwestern Mutual (Ret)
6 Greenmeadow Lane

Bedford, NH 03110
Tel: 603-860-5988

rawlinqsnh@CQmcast.net

12/1999-12/2024

Rev: 2/23/2023
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2023 Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Board of Directors

Linda Roth

Long Term Care (Ret)
32 Mclntosh Road

Danville NH 03819

Tel: 508-397-4546

Lroth0227@yahoo.com
12/2017-12/2023

Rob WIeczorek

President, Wieczorek Insurance

166 Concord Street

Manchester NH 03101

Tel: 603-668-3311

rob@wi2insurance.com

11/2013-12/2024

Nathan Sailer

President & CEO

Bellwether Community Credit Union
425 Hooksett Road

Manchester, NH 03104

Tel: 603-429-4702

nathan.saller@bccu.orq
6/2022-12/2025

General Counsel & Assistant

Secretary rnon-voting member)
Bradford Cook, Esq.
Sheehan Phinney
1000 Elm St., PO Box 3701

Manchester NH 03105-3701

Tel: 603-627-8110

bcook@sheehan.com

11/2001-Present

Sanjeev Srinlvasan
VP, Corporate Dev & Strategy
Hypertherm
6 Dublin Ct

Bedford, NH 03110
Tel: 860 989 8030

sanjeevsrinivasanf^vahoo.com
4/2021-12/2023

Timothy Wade
Regional President
M&T Bank

1750 Elm Street, Suite 110

Manchester, NH 03104

Tel:

twaderg)mtb.com
2/2023-12/2023

Rev: 2/23/2023
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Easter Seals NH, Inc

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Ben Adams Senior Director of Programs $105,019 20% $21,004
Thomas Ware Program Coordinator $50,752 100% $50,752
Kaitlin Turmel Care Coordinator $42,994 100% $42,994
TBD Youth Support Specialist $39,520 12.5% $4,940



Benjamin C. Adams

EMPLOYMENT

Easterseals New Hampshire - Manchester, NH (September 2008 - Present)
Senior Director of Programs

Statewide Assignment Febuary 2023 - Present
• Coordinated the development, implementation, and operations of multiple programs. Developed and
implemented strategic plans to expand existing services, develop new programs, and expand geographic
territory served • Managed budgets to ensure financial viability.

Director of Workforce Development & Youth Transitional Services
Statewide Assignment (Dec 2014 - January 2023)
• Coordinated the development, implementation and monitoring of Workforce Development Department
statewide • Hired, trained and supervised Youth Transitional Services program coordination staff.
Employment Services staff. Independence Cleaning staff, and Vocational Evaluation staff • Conducted
marketing and outreach to employers, school districts, regional VR offices, parents, and students •
Collaborated with ESNH Community Based Services and Military and Veterans Services to ensure quality
employment supports were provided to these specific populations • Developed and implemented strategic
plans to expand existing services, develop new programs, and expand geographic territory served • Managed
budgets to ensure financial viability.

Director of Youth Transitional Services - ESNH

Stateivide Assignment (Aug 2012 ■ Dec 2014)
• Coordinated the development, implementation, and monitoring of statewide Youth Transitional Services
program • Hired, trained and supervised program coordination staff • Conducted marketing and outreach to
school districts, parents, and students • Managed budgets to ensure financial viability

Program Coordinator Youth Transitional Services, Job Placement Supervisor & Coordinator of Business
Development • ESNH
Statewide Assignment (Dec 2011 - Aug 2012)
• Conducted outreach to employers to develop mutually beneficial partnerships and create employment
opportunities for Easterseals customers • Acted as Program Coordinator for Youth Transitional services in
Western New Hampshire • Managed and supervised the Lebanon, Manchester and Nashua Vocational
Services offices • Hired, trained and supervised staff in Youth Transitional Services and Vocational Services •
Worked with Easterseals Veterans Count / Deployment Cycle Support Program • Created and conducted
vocational trainings for service members retuning from active duty.

Job Placement Supervisor - ESNH
Lebanon, Manchester & Nashua, NH (Sept 2009 - Dec 2011)
• Managed and supervised the Lebanon, Manchester and Nashua Vocational Services offices of Easterseals •
In addition to the Job Placement Specialist responsibilities; was responsible for hiring, training and supervising
staff • Conducted regular meetings to assess staff performance, provide guidance, and address issues •
Collaborated with program director to foster growth of the Vocational Services program • Worked with
Easterseals Veterans Count / Deployment Cycle Support Program to create collaborative partnerships with
Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve, NH National Guard, NH Employment Security, NH Vocational
Rehabilitation, and the office of NH Senator Frank Guinta • Created and conducted vocational trainings for
service members retuning from active duty

Job Placement Specialist - ESNH



Benjamin C. Adams

Claremont & Lebanon NH (Sept 2008-Sept 2009)
• Provided vocational assessment and support to clients with cognitive, behavioral, psychological, emotional,
and physical disabilities • Developed resumes • Provided general vocational counseling and coaching •
Provided job development, job placement, and job retention supports • Marketed to locale employers to
develop business contacts and advertise Easterseals Vocational Services • Consulted with New Hampshire
Vocational Rehabilitation staff, high school case managers, and other support agencies • Maintained a caseload
of 25 to 45 clients

Kearsarge Regional High School - North Button, NH (2006-2008)
Job Coach

• Worked within the community to develop and maintain business contacts • Placed students with cognitive,
behavioral, psychological, emotional, and physical disabilities in job shadows and internships • Provided
direct supervision and assessment of students • Worked with lEP teams regarding transition planning

Kearsarge Regional Middle School - New London, NH (2004-2006)
In-School Suspension Program Director
• Consulted with administration and staff regarding student's behavioral and academic needs • Managed
students with challenging behavior • Provided behavioral counseling and planning

Kearsarge Regional High School - New London, NH (2003-2004)
Special Education Inclusion Aide

• Provided educational and behavioral support to students with cognitive, behavioral, psychological
emotional, and physical disabilities

YMCA Camp Coniston - Croydon, NH (2002-2003)
Ropes Course Program Director
• Provided direct supervision of councilors and campers • Maintained course elements • Planned and
implemented team building activities

EDUCATION & RELEVANT COURSWORK

Colby-Sawyer College - New London, NH (1998-2002)
Bachelor ofArts English

-PSY101 Introduction to Psychology
-PSY 206 Adolescent Psychology
-CHI 309 Exceptional Learners

AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS

-EDU 305 Methods of Teaching 1
-EDU 306 Methods of Teaching II
•EDU 201 Foundations of Education

Appointed to New Hampshire State Rehabilitation Council - October 2019
Employer Support of Guard & Reserve NH Committee Award - April 2012
Easterseals New Hampshire President's Meritorious Award - December 2011
Employer Support of Guard & Reserve Civic Leader Flight - December 2011
NH State Rehabilitation Council Outstanding Job Developer of the Quarter - April 2011
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Kaitlin Turmel

Education

Bachelor of Science in Youth Development and Education May 2022

Major GPA: 3.96

Minor in Psychology Minor GPA: 3.91

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH Overall GPA: 3.54

Work Experience

Care Coordinator Ail Youth Count, Easterseals New Hampshire 7/15/23- present
Working with young adults ranging from ages 14-26 that have aged out of the foster care system.
Helping them with finding stable housing, employment, and providing financial assistance. Encouraging
self-sufficiency through wrap around supports.

Youth Counselor, Mount Prospect Academy 1/16/22- 5/16/22
Working with the residential team supporting boys ages 13-18 years old. Helping with ensuring the boys

safety and making positive connections with the other students and faculty. Planning activities that are
cognitiveiy and developmentally appropriate through building rapport with the boys.

Assistant Camp Director, Penacook Community Center 7/8/2021-8/20/21
Working with children from ages 6-12 during the summer camp day program. Helping them make

meaningful connections with other children and adults in the program. Using the outdoors and fieldtrips
to create appropriate activities for there development. Encouraging good sportsmanship, kindness, and
adventure.

Substitute Teacher, Chester Academy 5/24/21- 4/15/22
Working with children from Kindergarten to 8^ grade, during the school day. Using teacher plans in
order to help the kids succeed in their daily work. Along with helping in the transitions throughout the
day to get from one class to another.

After School Professional, Rumney School District 9/2020-2/10/22

Working with elementary school children during their afterschool program. Advising kids with their
homework assignments, ensuring they adapted to COVID-IS policies, encouraging cooperation and

partnership with group play, while also enabling individualized activities for children that warranted

independent study.

Store Clerk, Target, Hooksett, NH 5/2020-6/21

Independently managed the cash register and guest service area; interacted and assisted hundreds of

customers with purchases and returns. Developed skills to work with disgruntled clients, explaining

store policies and problem solved quickly when appropriate. Worked with customers in person, and

over the phone.

Lifeguard, Plymouth State University, Plymouth NH 9/2018- 5/21

Ensured the safety of all ages during lap swimming, and exercise groups. Interacting with facuity of the

school and people of the community. Developed communication skills when working with different

peopie, and learning to work with other lifeguards building relationships. Making sure that the pool is
secured and the safety of patrons is the first priority.

Girt Scout Camp Counselor, Camp Kettleford, Bedford NH 6/2017- 8/2019

Independently conducted campers' swim assessments, while being responsible for the oversight of over
25 kids at the lake waterfront, ensuring they understood waterfront safety guidelines. Taught children
how to be confident in the water, while teaching them how to kayak and canoe safely. Focused on

playing activities and doing crafts that are developmentally appropriate to the age group. Learning to

work with a diverse group of people and making sure that our priorities are the children.



Internships

Mount Prospect Academy, Campton NH 9/21-5/2/22
Working with the residential and clinical teams in order to ensure the safety and care of boys in the
program. I am responsible for working with the different teams in order to make therapeutic goals,
positive interactions, and teach the boys skills to be able to succeed in adult living. We also focus on
building rapport with the boys, and facilitating positive family interactions. Creating activities for
developmentally and cognitive appropriate for the boys to do that focus on therapeutic practices. While
having the understanding and inner workings of a residential facility.

Skills & Certifications

•  Certified in First Aid - American Heart Saver

•  Certified in Boating and Wilderness Activities- Girl Scouts of the White Mountains

•  New Hampshire Health & Safety Training with Children- Prosolutions

•  Certified in TCI- Therapeutic Crisis Intervention- Mount Prospect Academy

Membership. Honors. & Affiliations

•  Plymouth State University Swim Team

•  Presidents List: Fall and Spring 2020, Fall and Spring 2021

•  Varsity Swim Captain: 2017-2018



THOMAS J. WARE

Motivated, self-directed leader, eager to contribute intelligence, experience, and dynamic personality to a
progressive company.

•  Superior verbal and written communication skills.

•  Excellent organization and multi-tasking skills, with a keen attention to detail.

•  Outgoing, friendly personality with a lively sense of humor and world class customer service.

•  Top tier collaborative and creative problem-solving abilities.

•  Diverse management experience.

•  Outstanding business development and networking skills.

Professional Exverience

Program Coordinator, All Youth Count

Easterseals NH, Manchester NH 2021 - Present

•  Launched a new program serving former foster care youth, focused on finding housing,
employment, and providing emergency financial assistance.

•  Collaborate with public and private partner agencies and businesses to produce measurable
positive outcomes for youth in need.

Program Coordinator, Youth Transitional Services

Easterseals NH, Lebanon & Belmont NH 2013 - 2021
•  Created and managed individualized, community-based programs for students with disabilities.
•  Grew program from serving 5 students and 5 school districts to 25+ students and 13

school districts in 3 years.

•  Supervised a staff of up to 20 specialists, across the Upper Valley, Monadnock, and Lakes
Regions.

•  Developed collaborative relationships with local businesses, non-profits, and government
agencies.

•  Provided top-notch professional service to a diverse client base.

Server, New London Inn & Coach House Restaurant, New London NH 2012 - 2020

Teacher, Para educator. Coach, Kearsarge Regional Middle School, Sutton NH 2008 - 2013

• Worked in 7th and 8th grades to accommodate Special Education. In classrooms, served as a 2nd
teacher, assisting all students.

•  Helped students develop learning and study skills, as well as how to self-advocate.

•  Coached Basketball, Soccer, and Baseball. Also supervised the ski/snowboard winter activity.
Junior Researcher/Administrative Assistant, S. D. Kelly & Associates, Braintree MA 2007 - 2008

•  Discovered and helped recruit mid- to high-level professionals in the technology industry.
Contractor, AB3 Enterprises, Richmond VA 2004 - 2006
Teaching Assistant, James Madison University, Harrisonburg VA 2003 - 2004

Education

Bachelor of Arts, History, James Madison University, earned 2003
Master of Arts, History, James Madison University, three semesters completed, 2003 - 2004
Master of Education, New England College, three semesters completed, 2010-2011


